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Statement and Endorsement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

Statement

It is the opinion of the Board of Directors and the CEO of Iceland Seafood International hf. (the Company), that these
Consolidated Financial Statements present the necessary information to evaluate the financial position of the
Company at year end, the operating results for the year and financial developments during the year 2025.

Furthermore, in our opinion the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Statement and Endorsement of the
Board of Directors and the CEO give a fair view of the development and performance of the Group's operations and
its position and describe the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and additional disclosure requirements in the Icelandic Act no. 3/2006 on
Financial Statements.

The Company

Iceland Seafood International hf ("the Company") is a holding company for a Group of subsidiaries in Europe and
South America. The Company is a one of the leading suppliers of North-Atlantic seafood, a global value-added
seafood producer, and a sales and marketing company. The Group is headquartered in Iceland and has subsidiaries
in Spain, Argentina, Ireland, Iceland, France, Germany and the United Kingdom.

The Group operates across three divisions, Value Added Southern Europe, Value Added Northern Europe and Sales &
Distribution Division which has offices in Iceland, France and Germany. The Value Added Divisions have processing
factories and coldstores in their respective regions with Southern Europe also having a satellite facility and a freezer-
trawler operation in Argentina.

Changes in Financial Statement Presentation

Effective from Q1 2025, we have revised the format of our financial statements to present both current quarter and
year-to-date (YTD) results within each quarterly, bi-annual, and annual report. As part of this change, we have
discontinued the use of separate columns for Normalised results and significant items in the YTD sections of
quarterly reports and for the prior year.

Operations for the year

Inflation decreased across the EU in 2025 while rising slightly in the UK and the US, and interest rates fell in several
major markets. Together, these shifts have resulted in moderate to positive effects on consumer purchasing power in
2025. Total sales from continuing operations reached EUR 484.3 million, marking a 9% increase compared to the
previous year. This growth over the year was primarily driven by high cod prices and strong demand for whitefish.
The fourth quarter performed notably well, in line with expected seasonal patterns, with sales increasing by 5.8%
compared to the same quarter in 2024. Christmas-season sales were strong in the Irish and Spanish subsidiaries,
together with a robust performance in frozen and fresh products from the Sales and Distribution Division.

The year was marked by rising prices for cod and related species, as well as for mackerel, while herring prices
remained relatively stable and capelin was scarce due to very low quotas issued for 2025. In contrast, salmon prices
were substantially lower than projected, which contributed to a very strong year across all Company divisions.
Despite the limited capelin availability, reducing volumes compared to previous years, a shift toward a higher-value
product mix supported performance and contributed to an overall sales growth.
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Statement and Endorsement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

Normalised profit before tax reached EUR 10.6 million, an increase of EUR 3.2 million compared to the previous year.
The profit for 2025 amounted to EUR 7.4 million, a significant improvement from the EUR 2.8 million profit in 2024.
Lower salmon prices benefited our VA N-Europe operations, even as elevated whitefish prices presented challenges.
Ahumados Dominguez in Spain, which relies heavily on salmon, delivered a healthy profit for the second consecutive
year. Additionally, rising sales prices throughout the year supported margin improvements, particularly within the VA
S-Europe division.

The S&D division also performed strongly, driven by solid demand for Icelandic products. Our freezing trawler
operation in Argentina, which commenced in the fall of 2025, shows promising potential, enabling us to expand
further into the value chain and offer premium wild-caught shrimp, thereby broadening our product portfolio.

In 2025 Iceland Seafood International hf. successfully completed its refinancing process. Credit facilities with an
Icelandic bank were renewed, and both the credit line and loan previously held with a foreign financial institution
were refinanced through the same Icelandic bank. On April 7, the Group completed an unsecured bond issuance,
raising ISK 4,000 million (equivalent to EUR 27.6 million via currency swap) with a 3.5-year maturity. Additionally, the
Company conducted three short-term bill offerings in October and December 2025, raising ISK 2,660 million (EUR
16.8 million via currency swap) with 6 month maturities. This refinancing reduced interest expenses from the June
2025 maturity date and will do so onward. The Group remains focused on further lowering financing costs through
continued financial optimization initiatives. Further information in note nr 21.

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at year-end 2025 shows total assets of EUR 279.4 million or EUR
25.5 million increase from the prior year. The increase in total assets is mainly due to higher inventories value,
higher cash position and purchase of freezing trawlers and fishing rights. Net debt at end of December of EUR 111.4
million was EUR 6.8 million higher than at year end 2024 on a like for like basis. Increase in debts is mainly driven by
high inventories at year end and investments in the freezing trawlers in Argentina.

Total equity, including non-controlling interests amounted to EUR 82.4 million compared to EUR 76.2 million at end
of December 2024. The equity ratio was 29.5% at year end compared to 30.0% at end of 2024.

Full time employees in continuing operations on average for the year were 797 (2024: 767), with 802 at year end
(2024: 788).

Acquisition of Cigalfer792 S.R.L.

On December 20th, 2024, Iceland Seafood Iberica S.A.U. in Spain, a subsidiary of Iceland Seafood, and Achernar S.A.,
an Argentinian subsidiary of Iberica, signed an agreement to purchase all the issued share capital of Cigalfer792 S.R.L.
in Argentina, effective from January 1st, 2025. Cigalfer792 S.R.L. operates a cold storage facility and is located near
Achernar S.A. The consideration for the share capital was USD 3,350,000. Cigalfer792 S.R.L. was treated as asset
acquisition at 2024 year-end, and included in the Group’s financial statement from the beginning of 2025.

Cigalfer792 S.R.L. will enhance the current operation, leading to immediate cost reductions in Achernar operations. It
will also contribute to an overall decrease in storage costs within the IS lberica Group, improving inventory
management and reducing inventory-related expenses.
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Statement and Endorsement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

Thorpesca S.A.S.

On July 18th, 2025, THORPESCA S.A.S., a new Argentinian subsidiary of Iceland Seafood Ibérica S.A.U., signed an
agreement to acquire two freezer trawlers along with associated fishing licenses and historical fishing rights from
FOOD ARTS S.A. The purchase price amounts to USD 6.0 million. USD 1.2 million for the vessels and USD 4.8 million
for the fishing rights.

Iceland Seafood Barraclough Ltd.

Espersen A/S’s subsidiary, Espersen UK, has withdrawn from its operations in Grimsby and confirmed that it will not
exercise its purchase option at the end of the four-year lease period in September 2027. The company has also
approved the early sale of the property.

Market capitalization

The Company is listed on the Nasdaq main market in Iceland (ticker: ICESEA). The latest transaction in 2025 was at
ISK 4.86 per share, giving the Company a market capitalization of EUR 101.5 million (2024: EUR 107.9 million) or 6%
decrease from year end 2024.

Shareholders
The total number of shareholders at year end was 664 (2024: 745). The ten largest are (shares are in millions):

31.12.2025 31.12.2024

FISK SEAf00d ENT ....eeeiieeceeseet e 455  15% 363 12%
2T 0 0 SRS 350 11% 350 11%
Jakob Valgeir €Nf .......oo e 345 11% 345 11%
NeSTISKUP €NT ..o e e 322 11% 322 11%
Birta lifeyriSSJOOUL ....eee ettt e e e saree s 194 6% 178 6%
Lifsverk lfeyriSSjOOUL .....ciiiiie e e e 178 6% 164 5%
STAPI [IEYIISSJOTUN eeeneeeeeeciiie ettt ree e tee et eeeeae e s neae e e setaeeenens 159 5% 159 5%
Lifeyrissjodur starfsmanna rikisins A-deild ........ccccceeveievieeeeccie e, 106 3% 122 4%
Sjova-Almennar tryggingar hf. .......ccoeeeioii i 93 3% 93 3%
VIS trYEEINGAT N. ettt enes 87 3% 87 3%

2289 74% 2,183 71%
Other shareholders (2025: 654 and 2024: 735) .....cceeeiveeeeiireeeiieeeeseireennns 775 26% 881 29%

3.064 100% 3.064 100%

Stock options are granted to management, based on stock option plan approved by Annual General Meeting in
March 2021. Total granted and unexercised options at year end 2025 were 15.8 million shares (2024: 15.8 million
shares). At end of the year 15.8 million shares are exercisable. All granted options are vested. Further information
on stock options is disclosed in note 20.4.

The Board of Directors will propose to the Annual General Meeting that no dividend will be paid to shareholders in
2026. For an overview of changes in equity, see the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.
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Statement and Endorsement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

Corporate Governance

Iceland Seafood International hf. is a limited liability company operating under Act No. 2/1995 respecting Public
Limited Companies. The framework for Corporate Governance practices within the Company is defined by the
provisions of law, the Nasdaq Iceland Rules, the principles set forth in the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued
by the Iceland Chamber of Commerce, the Company's Articles of Association and rules of procedures for Board and
sub-committees. The Company is governed by shareholders meetings, the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer. The Board of Directors shall be composed of three to five members and up to two alternate members,
elected at the Annual General Meeting for a term of one year. Currently the board consist of five members and one
alternate member. Two of five board members are female, the Company therefore complies with regulation on
gender compositon of the board. Furthermore the Senior Executive Management consists of a male and a female,
and the Company’s gender ratio is 51% males, 49% females.

Further information is provided in the Corporate Governance Statement which is an appendix to these Financial
Statements.

Non-financial information

The Company is defined, under the Icelandic Act no. 3/2006 on Financial Statements, as a parent company of a large
consolidation. According to the Act, such companies are to disclose as an attachment to the Statement and
Endorsement by the Board of Directors and the CEO, relevant and useful information on their policies, main risks and
outcomes relating to environmental, social and employee matters, their human rights policy and how they
counteract corruption and bribery. Also a short description of their business model.

The European Union has introduced the European Green Deal which consists of series of major proposals, important
commitments and detailed roadmap with the goal of Europe to become the world's first climate-neutral continent by
2050. One aspect for the financial part of the European Green Deal is the Taxonomy Regulation 2020/852/EU, which
took effect in Iceland in June 2023 with act. no. 25/2023. The Company has gone through a detailed assessment to
understand the extent of the regulation for its operation and has evaluated the eligibility and alignment against the
climate and environmental objectives. The results are reported in detail in the chapter Non-Financial Disclosure.

The Company's policies, material issues and focus areas are disclosed in the Non-Financial Information appendices to
these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Statement and Endorsement
by the Board of Directors and the CEO

Endorsement
The Board of Directors and the CEO of Iceland Seafood International hf. hereby confirm the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the year 2025 with their signatures.

Reykjavik, 26 February 2026

Birna Einarsdottir Bergpdr Baldvinsson
Chairman of the Board Board Member
Hallddr Leifsson Ingunn Agnes Kro
Board Member Board Member

Jakob Valgeir Flosason /Zgir Pall Fridbertsson
Board Member Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditor's Report

of the Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Board of Directors and shareholders of Iceland Seafood International hf.

Opinion

We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of Iceland Seafood International hf. for the year ended 31
December 2025 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of Iceland Seafood International hf. as at 31 December 2025 and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and additional requirements in the Icelandic Financial Statement
Act.

Our opinion in this report on the Consolidated Financial Statements is consistent with the content of the additional
report that has been submitted to the parent company’s audit committee in accordance with the EU Audit Regulation
537/2014 Article 11.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of Iceland Seafood International hf. in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
Iceland, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA
Code. This includes that, based on the best of our knowledge and belief, no prohibited services referred to in the EU
Audit Regulation 537/2014 Article 5.1 has been provided to the audited company or, where applicable, its parent
company or its controlled companies within the EU. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of goodwill How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Book value of goodwill at year-end amount In order to address this key audit matter, we audited the
to EUR 56.2 million (2024: 56.2 million). assumptions used in the impairment model for goodwill. As part of

our work, we engaged our internal specialists to assist with:
The management consider that each

geographical segment constitutes its own = Critically evaluating whether the model used by management to
cash generating unit (‘CGU’). The key calculate the value in use of the individual Cash Generating Units
assumptions applied by the managements complies with the requirements of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

in the impairment reviews are: segment = Validating the assumptions used to calculate the discount rates
specific discount rates, and recalculating these rates.
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future revenue growth and expected future
margins. Determining whether the carrying
value of goodwill is recoverable requires
management to make significant estimates
regarding the future cash flows, discount
rates and long-term growth rates based on
management’s view of future business
prospects.

* Considering the projected future cash flows, understanding
variances between the forecast and actual results for the year
ended 31 December 2025 and comparing the forecast growth
trends to historic trends.

* Evaluating the appropriateness of the sensitivity analysis applied
by management to the impairment testing model including
considering whether the scenarios reasonably represent possible
changes in key assumptions.

* Performing further sensitivity analysis based on our
understanding of the future prospects to identify whether these
scenarios could give rise to further impairment; and

* Analysing the future projected cash flows used in the models to
determine whether they are reasonable and supportable given the
current macroeconomic climate and expected future performance

Due to the relative sensitivity of certain
inputs to the impairment testing process, in
particular the future cash flows of the CGUs
noted above, the valuation of goodwill is
considered a key audit matter.

We also reviewed the disclosures presented in note 11 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements to confirm compliance with the

requirements within IAS 36.
Other information

The Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Statement and Endorsement by the Board of Directors and the CEO and the unaudited appendices to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon, except the confirmation regarding Statement and Endorsement by the
Board of Directors and the CEO as stated below.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

In accordance with Paragraph 2 article 104 of the Icelandic Financial Statement Act no. 3/2006, we confirm to the
best of our knowledge that the accompanying Statement and Endorsement by the Board of Directors and CEO
includes all information required by the Icelandic Financial Statement Act that is not disclosed elsewhere in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the CEO for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and
additional requirements in the Icelandic Financial Statement Act, and for such internal control as the Board of
Directors and the CEO determines is necessary to enable the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for assessing
Iceland Seafood International hf.’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors and the CEO either
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors and the audit committee shall supervise the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated
financial statements.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Iceland
Seafood International hf.'s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

In addition to our work as the auditors of Iceland Seafood International hf., Deloitte has provided the firm with
permitted additional services such as review of interim financial statements. Deloitte has in place internal procedures
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in order to ensure its independence before acceptance of additional services. The audit committee also evaluates the
independence of the company’s auditors on yearly basis in order to ensure their independence and objectivity.
Deloitte has confirmed in writing to the Audit Committee that we are independent of Iceland Seafood International

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Report on European single electronic format (ESEF Regulation)

As part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Iceland Seafood International hf. we performed
procedures to be able to issue an opinion on whether the consolidated financial statements of Iceland Seafood
International hf. for the year 2025 with the file name "254900CJS00I5B8G0668-2025-12-31-0-en.zip" is prepared, in
all material respects, in compliance with laws no. 20/2021 disclosure obligation of issuers of securities and the
obligation to flag relating torequirements regarding European single electronic format regulation EU 2019/815 which
include requirements related to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in XHTML format and iXBRL
markup.

Management is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements in compliance with laws no. 20/2021
disclosure obligation of issuers of securities and the obligation to flag. This responsibility includes preparing the
consolidated financial statements in a XHTML format in accordance to EU regulation 2019/815 on the European
single electronic format (ESEF regulation).

Our responsibility is to obtain reasonable assurance, based on evidence that we have obtained, on whether the
consolidated financial statements is prepared in all material respects, in compliance with the ESEF Regulation, and to
issue a report that includes our opinion. The nature, timing and extent of procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material departures from the requirement set out in the
ESEF regulation, whether due to fraud or error.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31.12.2025, with the file name
"254900CJS00I5B8G0O668-2025-12-31-0-en.zip", has been prepared, in all material respects, in compliance with the
ESEF Regulation.

Deloitte was appointed auditor of Iceland Seafood International hf. by the Annual General Meeting of shareholders
on 26 March 2025. Deloitte have been elected since the Annual General Meeting 1999.

Kdépavogur, 26 February 2026

Deloitte ehf.

Heidar Pér Karlsson
State Authorised Public Accountant
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
for the year ended 31 December 2025

Note 2025 2024 2025 2024
1.10.-31.12. 1.10.-31.12. 1.1.-31.12. 1.1.-31.12.

Gross profit

Sales of Seafo0d ........cccvveevievieceece e 2 136.707 129.165 484.273 443.179
Cost of sales 15 (114.053) (107.283) (410.948) (375.899)
22.654 21.882 73.325 67.280

Operating expenses
OPErating EXPENSES ....ccveevvreereerreeireerieeieeereerteesreeseesaees (13.832) (12.518) (50.532) (48.565)
Operating profit before interest and depreciation and

amortisation (EBITDA) ...cc.eeceeeirrereenneecrerrreeeeennnceseseenens 8.822 9.364 22.793 18.715
Change in fair value of investment property ........cccueu.... 9 119 (78) (87) (244)
Depreciation and amortisation .........cccceeeeveereeeveeneeecneens 10 (1.056) (647) (4.056) (4.070)
Operating Profit (EBIT) c..e.eeceeereeeereeeeeseeessesesesssseesesns 7.885 8.639 18.650 14.401
Net fiNANCE COSES ..vvivririiiiieciiecie ettt 5 (1.323) (1.522) (5.229) (6.408)
Net exchange rate difference ......cccceevvveecveceecceecee s (15) (2.174) (2.819) (552)
Profit before exceptional items and taxes ........cccceeueeeens 6.547 4.943 10.602 7.441
EXCePional it€MS ....cccuveeieeciiecie e 7 (60) (404) (633) (3.512)
Profit before taxes ......cccceevviiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininnnn, 6.487 4.539 9.969 3.929
INCOME TAXES .veevvecerieeiie e ste et stte et sree s veesree s reesraeereenes 6 (1.669) (294) (2.614) (1.153)
Profit for the period ........cccvveeeeiiiiiniiieeciiiiininnrcnens 4.818 4.245 7.355 2.776
Attributable to
Owners of the COMPaNny ......ccceeveevieeceerieere e e 4,597 4.096 7.087 2.654
Non-controlling iNterests ........ccccevvveeeeeecreevee e e 221 149 268 122
Profit for the period ........ccevveeeeiiiiiiiiiencciiiinninncnnns 4.818 4.245 7.355 2.776
Earnings per share 8
Basic and diluted (EUR cents per share) ......cccceecvvevvveenenne 0,1500 0,1337 0,2313 0,0866

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2025

2025 2024 2025 2024
1.10.-31.12.1.10.-31.12.1.1. - 31.12. 1.1.-31.12.

Profit for the Period .......ccceveeeeeeieeiiriieeienecceeeeereenneeeeeeeeennensneeseenns 4.818 4.245 7.355 2.776

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Net fair value of cash flow hedges ........ccoeeveeeieeciieiereeeeeee 76
Translation differ@nCe ......ccueecvveeieciee e e (48) 694 (1.141) 526
Total comprehensive iINCOME ......cccvveueiiiiiiiiieeeniiininnneeresnseeseeens 4.770 4.939 6.214 3.378

Attributable to

Owners of the Company ..... 4.549 4.790 5.946 3.256
Non-controlling interests 221 149 268 122
Total comprehensive iINCOME ......cccveeueiiiiiiiineeenciiinineneeresnneeeeeens 4.770 4.939 6.214 3.378

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
at 31 December 2025

Note
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and @QUIPMENT ......ccveeiiiecieeieecie et ere e v e re e saaeeareeens 10
Investment property 9
LEASEA @SSELS .uveverieiiiniiiieriesieesteseeste st ebes e ete st esbesbeestesteesaestesssentesseensentessaenbesnnanen 23
a1 T aT=d] o (=T LYY £ RPNt 11
FINaNCe 1€aSe reCEIVADIES .....ovviiiiiiiieeece et
DEfErred taX @SSEES .uiviiiirirrieirieierieeeete sttt sre e b et sre st s b s e et e s e e besaeenee 6
Other IONZ TEIM @SSELS ...cveiiieeiieecieeceeee et et se e te e e e e aeebe e teeerseesteesabeensaeeasean
Total non-current assets
Current assets
INVENTOTIES ...ttt et e e b e e s bae e s b aesnnees 15
FINaNCe 1€aSe reCEIVADIES .....ovuiiiiiiiieiicce e
Trade and Other reCeiVabIEs ........cocueceriiiiniiie e 16
ONEI @SSELS .veveiiiriieierieeie sttt sttt st st sttt e e e stesae st e sbeesaesbessbestessaensesssensanes 17
Cash and bank balances 18
Total current assets
Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves
Issued capital and Share PremMium .......oocceeceeeceececeeee e 19
TranSIation MESEIVE .....uviiciee ettt e et e et e e etae e et ae e e asee e neeeeneeaeeans 20
OtNEI FESEIVES ..ottt ettt et eertte e e e te e e e e tte e e tae e s aaaeeeaseeesnneeeentaeeans 20
Retained earnings and unrealised profit from subsidiaries .........cccocceeveevceiieeneenns
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
NON-CONLIOIING INTEIESES ..eeevieeeeeie e e e
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
BOITOWINES ..ttt ettt ettt e e et e e st e e st ae e s bt eeesabte e sneeeenneee s 21
LEASE lHADIlITIS ..veeeeeeiee ettt et et e ar e e e e e araee s 23
Retirement benefit and other obligations .........cccocevviievieicieseece e,
Deferred tax llabilities ........ooccueieeie e e e 6
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
BOITOWINES ..ottt ettt ettt e et e e st e s bae e bt eeesabte e sneeeeaseee s 21
LEASE lHADIlITIS ...veeeeeeieceie et ettt e e e e ear e e e anaee s 23
Trade and other payables ...
Other [abilities .....eeeeeeee ettt e e e et ebe e e aaae e eans 22
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Iceland Seafood International hf. 13

31.12.2025  31.12.2024
35.559 34.723
3.782 4.220
1.954 1.389
61.001 56.577
398 1.186
1.848 2.518
166 128
104.708 100.741
79.461 61.857
493 228
68.607 68.352
10.389 9.844
15.727 12.900
174.677 153.181
279.385 253.922
46.321 71.524
(1.120) 21
612 612
34.085 1.853
79.898 74.010
2.475 2.207
82.373 76.217
35.590 7.881
1.686 1.085
2.711 1.140
2.165 1.791
42.152 11.897
91.574 109.630
497 509
53.252 44.697
9.537 10.972
154.860 165.808
197.012 177.705
279.385 253.922

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2025

Balances at 1 January 2024

Profit (loss) for the year ......c.cccccveeevieeeeciveeccieeene
Net fair value gain on cash flow hedges ................
Translation of shares held in foreign currencies ...
Total comprehensive iNCOME .......cceevvveevciveeernnennn.

Issue of share capital .........cccccvvevcieeeccieeciee e,
Transfer of cash flow hedge upon derecognition

of financial liabilities ..........cccceeieniiininicene,
Dividend declared from subsidiaries to parent .....
Other adjustments ........cccceeveceeeercieeecciee e
Balances at 31 December 2024

Profit (loss) for the year ......c.ccccveeevieeeeciveeccieeene
Translation of shares held in foreign currencies ...
Total comprehensive iNCOME .......cceevvveevciieeennneenn.

Transfer of share premium to accumulated loss ...
Dividend declared from subsidiaries to parent .....
Other adjustments
Balances at 31 December 2025

Iceland Seafood International hf.

Restricted equity

Attributable Non -

Share Share  Translation Hedging Statutory Equity  Unrealised profit Retained to owners of controlling Total

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve of subsidiaries earnings the Company interests equity
27.456  44.084 (505) (641) 430 181 21.657 (21.657) 71.005 1.726 72.731
8.990 (6.336) 2.654 122 2.776
76 76 76
526 526 526
526 76 8.990 (6.336) 3.256 122 3.378
0 360 360
565 (565) 0 0

(4.500) 4.500
(16) 1 (236) (251) (1) (252)
27.456 44.068 21 0 430 182 26.147 (24.294) 74.010 2.207 76.217
10.342 (3.255) 7.087 268 7.355
(1.141) (1.141) (1.141)
(1.141) 10.342 (3.255) 5.946 268 6.214
(25.203) 25.203 0 0
(5.500) 5.500 0 0
(58) (58) (58)
27.456 18.865 (1.120) 0 430 182 30.989 3.096 79.898 2.475 82.373
Amounts in EUR thousands
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2025

Note 2025

2024

Operating activities

12.752
1.190
4.070

(91)
(668)

17.253
15.132
(10.733)
(9.139)

12.513

1.405
(9.676)
(1.871)

2.371

(3.627)
(4.469)
(197)
135
(695)

(8.853)

(6.482)

8.889
(1.458)
3.667
(9.889)
360

1.569

(4.913)
16.524
1.289

Operating Profit ....cceceeceeveenienieeceeseesieens 18.630
Change in fair value of investment property 9 87
Depreciation and amortisation .........ceeceeveeiiiniinnereceeseeee s 10 4.056
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment ........cccoeevvvieeveenieencecneens (42)
Change in obligations and other calculated liabilities .........cccoevveievieneeneennen. 2.652
Working capital generated from operations 25.383
(Increase) decrease in iNVENTOMIES .....cvvvvevcieirieeneeseeseeere et ree e sae e (17.604)
(Increase) decrease in receivables and other assets .. (315)
Increase (decrease) in payables and other liabilities ........c.ccceeeveeiveinceinnennen. 7.965
Cash generated from operations before interests and taxes 15.429
INTErEST FECEIVEM ...ttt 1.003
INTEIEST PAIT 1eoneeeeieeiieee ettt et te st e et saa e e b e e aesaaesnne s (6.845)
INCOME TAXES PAI .veevvieririeirieiiereirte et e e srtesreeteesbeeseesrseesseesseesasessseenseesens (2.604)
Net cash generated from operating activities 6.983
Investing activities
Payments for investment property .....cccoveeeerie e e 9
Payments for property, plant and equipment ........ccceceeeveeneenceenieeneeseesiene 10 (5.563)
Payments for intangible @sSets ........cccvvverieeveeiierie e 11 (4.440)
Proceeds from disposal of NON-CUrrent assets ........cocveevveeveenvenieeneeneesieesseenns 83
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries ........c.ccccvceeveeercienieinieeniienneenns 13 (809)
Net cash used in investing activities (10.729)
Net cash before financing activities (3.746)
Financing activities
Net proceeds from revolving credit facility ......ccccceeeveereeniiinieciecse e 21 9.784
Net proceeds from (repayment of) Dills .......ccceevvieevieniiiniiniecesecee e, 21 1.281
Net proceeds from borrowings on new term [0an ........cccceevvvevvenvenveecieenenens 21 12.927
Net repayment of other borrowings .......cooeevvevieiveeiiccie e 21 (13.884)
Proceeds from issue of share capital, net of issue costs
Net cash generated by financing activities 10.108
Net increase (decrease) in cash and bank balances ........c.ccceeevvieniencieciieenieens 6.362
Cash and bank balances at the beginning of the year .........ccocevvvvvveeieenienenn. 12.900
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash held in foreign currencies ................ (3.535)
Cash and bank balances at the end of the year 18 15.727

12.900

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2025

1. General information
Iceland Seafood International hf. (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Iceland. It is listed on the
Nasdag main market in Iceland (ticker: ICESEA).

The address of its registered office and principal place of business are disclosed in the Contents to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) are described in the
Statement and Endorsement by the Board of Directors and the CEO.

2. Segment information

2.1 Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues
Information is reported to the Board of Directors and key management on the operating segment level. The
reportable segments in 2025 were:

Value added Southern Europe ....... Processing and sale of seafood in Southern Europe.

Value added Northern Europe ....... Processing and sale of seafood in Ireland. Also includes UK as discont. operations.
Sales & Distribution ... ... Distribution of seafood to a global network of customers.

Other oo, Head office and discontinued operations.

2.2 Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

For the year 2025 Value added Value added Sales & Other and
S-Europe N-Europe Distribution Eliminations Consolidated

Revenue:

Sales of seafood 241.934 67.154 228.420 455 537.963
ElMINGtioNS oveveeveeeeeeereereeseeseeeean. (28.994) (3.896) (6.929) (13.871) (53.690)
212.940 63.258 221.491 (13.416) 484.273
Operating results:
Operating profit (10SS) ....cccevveeennnes 12.482 2.461 4.440 (733) 18.650
Net finance costs and
exchange rate difference ............ (4.234) (60) (12) (3.742) (8.048)
Normalised PBT .....ccccceeeveirrcrnnnnne 8.248 2.401 4.428 (4.475) 10.602
Exceptional costs .....ccccccevivciverennns (30) (603) (633)
Profit (loss) before taxes ............. 8.218 2.401 4.428 (5.078) 9.969
INCOME TAX cvreeeereerereereeseeseeseennan. (2.205) (319) (841) 751 (2.614)
Profit (loss) for the period ........... 6.013 2.082 3.587 (4.327) 7.355
ASSETS e 160.173 29.413 35.192 54.607 279.385
Liabilities .....ccoveevvereeerienieeneee 102.766 10.022 25.607 58.617 197.012

Iceland Seafood Barraclough in UK is now presented under Other and Eliminations instead of Value Added N-Europe
division. Comparative figures in 2024 have been restated accordingly.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2025

For the year 2024

Revenue:
Sales of seafood .......cccccvvveeeeeennnne.
Eliminations

Operating results:
Operating profit (10SS) ....cccccvveeennnne
Net finance costs and

exchange rate difference ............
Normalised PBT ......ccccceeveiiinnnnnnns
Exceptional costs .....ccccccvviviiienennns
Profit (loss) before taxes ....

3. Salaries
Salaries and related expenses:

SAlATTES ettt st bt e bt e e ate e eatesaneenaeean
PeNSIiON related EXPENSES ....cieicuiieeiiieeciieeectte et e et e e st e e e sre e e s ate e e saa e e e ebaeessnsaeeannns
Other salary related EXPENSES ......cocciieeeciieccie e rre e s srare e e sare e e raeeeeaes

Classified by operational category:

(010 1 do 1 AT 11 UUURNt

Operating expenses

Full time employees on average for the year from continuing operations
Full time employees at end of the year from continuing operations

4, Fee to auditors

Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTNEI SEIVICES «..evvvveeeee ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e baaaeeeeeeesbseaeeeeeesnssaseeeesennsrees

Iceland Seafood International hf.
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Value added Value added Sales & Other and
S-Europe N-Europe Distribution Eliminations Consolidated

230.607 63.521 187.180 460 481.768
(15.205) (6.702) (6.154) (10.528) (38.589)
215.402 56.819 181.026 (10.068) 443.179
8.725 2.763 3.668 (755) 14.401
(2.892) (248) 189 (4.009) (6.960)
5.833 2.515 3.857 (4.764) 7.441
0 0 (298) (3.214) (3.512)
5.833 2.515 3.559 (7.978) 3.929
(728) (332) (793) 700 (1.153)
5.105 2,183 2.766 (7.278) 2.776
137.819 29.324 31.711 55.068 253.922
85.101 12.094 21.213 59.297 177.705

2025 2024
27.933 26.506
4.444 4.071
1.118 918
33.495 31.495

2025 2024
20.298 18.836
13.197 12.659
33.495 31.495
................... 797 767
............................ 802 788

2025 2024
382 374
21 59
403 433

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2025

5. Net finance costs

2025 2024
Investment income:
Interest iNCOMe 0N DANK ACCOUNTS ...ecovuiieieiiiecciee e e e ae e e e e 413 733
Interest income on trade reCeiVabIEs .......coccviiicciiiiiccie e 590 672
Total INVESTMENT INCOME ...oiiiiiiiieciee e et e e et e e e saaae e e saaeeeeennes 1.003 1.405
Finance costs:
Interest eXPENSES ON DOITOWINGS ...cc.vviiiiiiiecciee et e e e re e e e e e e stae e s rareeeenee (6.011) (7.381)
Interest expenses on obligations UNder [€aSes ........ccccveeeciiieicciieecciee e (83) (80)
Other INTEreSt EXPENSES .oicuviieiciiieeciiee ettt e eeteeeertee e e streessteeeesteeessateeessseeesssseesssreensnns (138) (352)
TOtal fINANCE COSTS voiuiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e s e e e e sate e e s aee e esabeeeesaaaeeessseeeennens (6.232) (7.813)
NET FINANCE COSES 1uvviiiirieieiiieeeee et e e e e e ste e e e e e e e sabe e e e eateeeeaaeaeesnreesenneeas (5.229) (6.408)

. Income tax
6.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss 2025 2024
CUITENT TAX EXPENSE ..uvvieeeerieeeieeeeeieeesateeesitreeessteeeesasseessssseesssseeessssessasssessassessssssesssnsees (1.570) (1.909)
DeEfErred TaX EXPENSE ...c..vvieeeieie ettt e ctee e ete e e sette e e ee e e rta e e e s tre e e esaeeestaeeanseeeseseeeesnneeeens (1.044) 756
(2.614) (1.153)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

2025 2024
Profit before tax after exceptional items ......c.eeviiiei i 9.969 3.929
Income tax expense calculated at 20% (2024: 21%)(the Company's rate in Iceland) .... (1.994) (825)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions .................. (290) (100)
Effect of items that are not deductible/taxable in determining taxable profit .............. (115) (1.308)
Effect of unused tax losses and tax offsets not recognised as def. tax assets ............... (145) (1.184)
Effect of exchange rate difference on deferred tax .....cccocveviviiiiniiieiniiiiece e, (72) 2.351
(01 1T SRRSO SRR 2 (87)
Income tax expense recognised in Profit 0r [0SS ......cccceceerieiriiciee e (2.614) (1.153)
EffECHIVE taX FAte wuviiiiiiee ettt e e s st e s sbae s 26% 29%
6.2 Current tax balances 31.12.2025 31.12.2024
INCOME taX PAYADIE ... e e e e naes 1.202 1.087

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2025

6.3 Deferred tax balances 31.12.2025 31.12.2024
DEfErred taX @SSELS .iiiviiiiiiiiieiiiee ettt ettt e st e e st e s st e s bae e s nabeeesnnes 1.848 2.518
Deferred tax liabilities ....uiiiiire ittt e e ebre e e ebr e e e erbee e e saneeeenraeenans (2.165) (1.791)

(317) 727
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) have changed as follows:

Deferred tax Deferred tax
assets liabilities Total
AL LJANUAIY 2024 <.t es e se e eee e neenees 2.461 (2.490) (29)
Calculated tax for the Year .......cueeccveve e (766) (387) (1.153)
Income tax payable for the period 823 1.086 1.909
At 31 December 2024 ........uveeeeeeeeeeeee e 2.518 (1.791) 727
Calculated tax for the Year ... (1.199) (1.415) (2.614)
Income tax payable for the period .. 529 1.041 1.570
At 31 December 2025 .......uveeeeiieeeeeeeee e 1.848 (2.165) (317)
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) are in relation to:
31.12.2025 31.12.2024

Property, plant and equipment .... (161) (1.250)
INTANGIDIE ASSEES ..veieiieiiecie ettt e et ear e e snaeeree s (1.263) (1.226)
INVENTOTIES ..uvveeiiiieeeeieeeecteeeeeteeeestreeesteeeesbeeeesabeeeessaeesbsaeeeassaeessseesasseseensbesesnsresennrenas (51) (22)
Trade and other receivables (160) 1.656
DEFEITEA FEVENUE ..veieetvieeetree e eieee et e et e e etreeeebr e e e e beeeestbeeeesaseeesabeseensseeesassesesbreeennreees (250) (252)
Deferred exchange rate difference .......ccoecveeiieeiiecceccecece e (2) (16)
DEfErred 1aX 0SS .uviiiiiiiieeiee ettt et sabe e e eaaee 1.587 1.568
(011 o 1T (=T 0 o [ U U RUROPUURUURRIOt (18) 259

(317) 727

6.4. Unused tax losses

Most of the unused tax losses will expire in the years 2026-2035, although some subsidiaries have unused tax losses
that do not expire.

Unused tax losses at the amount of EUR 23.1 million is not recognised as deferred tax assets. Unused tax losses at the
amount of EUR 16.2 million will not expire and unused tax losses at the amount of EUR 6.7 million will expire in the
years 2029-2035.

Management has concluded that there will be sufficient taxable profit in the future to use the tax loss currently
carried forward. The recognition of the deferred tax is based on the Group’s forecast whereby there will be sufficient
taxable profits to fully utilize current taxable losses.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2025

7. Significant items

In 2025 the Group incurred costs associated with the following:

- Interest cost of bond ICESEA 25 06 related to the sale of Iceland Seafood UK, EUR 0.6 million.

In 2024 the Group incurred costs associated with the following:

- Interest cost of bond ICESEA 25 06 related to the sale of Iceland Seafood UK, EUR 1.7 million.
- Group management changes EUR 0.4 million.
- Costs related to the sale of UK operation EUR 1.4 million.

Exceptional costs, net of income tax: 2025 2024
N CeT=Y oL o Ta =T I oo ) £ PP (633) (2.154)
INCOME TAX e e e s e e e s e s nree e s 63
Costs due to discontinued operations (1.358)
Exceptional costs, Net 0f INCOME tAX ....ciciiieiiciiieiciie e e (633) (3.449)
8. Earnings per share

2025 2024
Profit attributable to owners of the COMPANY ....ccccuveeeiiieecciiecccee e 7.087 2.654
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in ISK thous.) for basic EPS .................. 3.064.480 3.064.480

The Company has no agreements with dilutive effects.
Basic and diluted earnings per share (EUR cents per share)
Basic and diluted earnings Per Share .......cccocceeeeiiiee et e 0,2313 0,0866
9. Investment property

2025 2024
AL L JANUAIY ittt se e e s e sttt e e e s s st be e e e e e st r e e e e e e s e nabraeeeeeennrrenaeas 4.220 1.663
Prior year adjUSTMENT ......c.eeicieeiieeiie ettt ste et sae et e s teesteebaeebeessbeessseeneeas (144)
FA¥o [ [ 4o o OO PP UPPUPPRPRROPRNE 3.627
Fair Value adjUSTMENTS ...ccuviiiiiiiiecii ettt tae st e e te e reeeteesaseesnaeenree s (87) (1.190)
EXChange rate diffErEnCeS .....cccovvieiiieiii ettt e e (207) 120
At 31 December 3.782 4.220

Investment properties held by the Group are a property in the UK that was used in the operation of Iceland Seafood
UK Ltd., that was sold in 2023. In accordance with the agreement with the buyer of Iceland Seafood UK Ltd., the buyer
and the Group entered into rental agreement of the property, where the lessee has a purchase option at end of the
leasing period. Asset valuation at year end reflects the discounted valuation of rental payments under the rental
agreement and the purchase price at the end of the leasing period.

The lessee, Espersen A/S’s subsidiary, Espersen UK, has withdrawn from its operations in Grimsby and confirmed that
it will not exercise its purchase option at the end of the four-year lease period in September 2027. The company has
also approved the early sale of the property. The Group reassessed the measurement basis for its investment
property in Grimsby and fair value changes are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with IAS 40.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2025

10. Property, plant and equipment

Property Machinery
For the year 2025 and land and equipment Total
Cost
AL LJANUAIY ettt sttt sae et b b eaees 24.603 20.134 44.737
AITIONS Lottt sttt 12 5.551 5.563
Eliminated on disposal ......cceeevieiiieniiiiiieceees e (280) (280)
Fully depreciated @SSets .......cccveviervierieiirieiiieseeseesveeaeeereesereeneee e (215) (215)
Exchange rate differences ......cccoceevieevieeciiiece e (775) (1.010) (1.785)
At 31 December 23.840 24.180 48.020
Depreciation
AT L JANUAIY ettt e e naeeeeeeeereeeeee 3.895 6.119 10.014
Charge for the period .........cccvveeeiiiecciie e 530 2.831 3.361
Eliminated on disposal ......c..eeeeciiieiciiieiiieee e (239) (239)
Fully depreciated .........cceeeeciee e (215) (215)
Exchange rate differences .......cccceveveeecviee e, (10) (450) (460)
At 31 DECEMDET ...evieieieeeceee et e et e e 4.415 8.046 12.461
At 31 DeCembEr 2025 ...c..ooiiieiieeieiteeee e e s 19.425 16.134 35.559

Property Machinery
For the year 2024 and land and equipment Total
Cost
AT L JANUAIY ettt e e baeeeeeeeereeeeee 21.323 16.498 37.821
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary .........cccocceevvieiiiie i 3.200 3.200
Yo Lo 11 1 o] o -SSRSOt 38 4.431 4.469
Eliminated on disposal ......c..eeeeciiieiciiieiiieee e (469) (469)
Fully depreciated @SSets .......cccveeecieeeeciieiiiiee et ere e (71) (906) (977)
Exchange rate differences .......cccceeevveeeciee e, 113 580 693
At 31 DECEMDET ...evieieieeeceee et e et e e 24.603 20.134 44.737
Depreciation
AL L JANUAIY coiieieeeeeeeee et e e s e e s s snrreee e e s snannee 3.339 4.357 7.696
Charge for the period ........coccvviiviiiniiiiir e 619 2.806 3.425
Eliminated on disposal (299) (299)
FUlly depreciated ........cccecvieciieiiiieiiecee et te e e (71) (906) (977)
Exchange rate differences ... vvviveniieeiniiee e 8 161 169
At 31 DECEMDET ...ttt 3.895 6.119 10.014
At 31 DECeMBEr 2024 ..ottt e 20.708 14.015 34.723

10.1 Useful lives
The following useful lives of property, plant and equipment are used in the calculation of amortisation.

Property and [and .........cccceevieiiiiee e 25-50 years
Machinery and equipment .......cccccceeevvieeeciieeecnnnn. 3-20 years

10.2 Property, plant and equipment pledged as security

Amounts in EUR thousands
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At year-end 2025, the Group had no property, plant and equipment pledged as security for its banking facilities. In the
prior year, a property in the UK was pledged as security for banking facilities of the Group’s UK operations.

10.3 Depreciation and amortisation expense 2025 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3.361 3.425
Amortisation of intangible assets, NOTE 11 ......ccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiieiriee e 94 75
Depreciation of leased assets, NOTE 23 ......uiviiiiiiiiiiieeriee e s 601 570
4.056 4.070
10.4 Property, plant and equipment insurance value 31.12.2025 31.12.2024
INSUFANCE VAIUE ..ttt ettt e e e ee e e eate e e s eat e e e e aat e e e sbaeeesnsaeesnnseeeesaneannns 85.507 62.903

10.5 Fire in Achernar’s Operational Facilities

On December 5th 2025, a fire occurred in the reception and office areas of Achernar’s processing facility, a subsidiary
of the Group located in Argentina. The fire was contained within the affected areas and did not spread to other parts
of the facility, as firewalls prevented further damage. The incident did not affect inventory storage areas. Operations
resumed within two weeks following the incident, and the facility has since been operating at full capacity. The
property is insured, and the incident has been reported to the Group’s insurance broker. As at the reporting date, the
final financial impact of the incident has not yet been determined. Based on information currently available,
management does not expect the fire to have a material impact on the Group’s financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows.

11. Intangible assets

Other intangible Fishing
For the year 2025 Goodwill assets rights Total
AL L JANUATY ettt e e e e e e eeeees 56.216 361 56.577
P Yo L 14 o] o - 329 4.111 4.440
Charge for the period ........ccccoeeeeiiieciiieccee e (94) (94)
Exchange rate differences ......ccccceecveevvieeeccvee e, (18) 96 78
At 31 DECEMDEN ...evvieeiieeecvie et 56.216 578 4.207 61.001
Other intangible Fishing
For the year 2024 Goodwill assets rights Total
At 1 January 56.216 231 56.447
AdItioNS ..o 197 197
Charge for the period .........cccceeevvevieevciieniicee e (75) (75)
Exchange rate differences .. 8 8
At 31 December ....ooiiiiiiieeee e 56.216 361 0 56.577

During the year, the Company purchased fishing rights for shrimp in Argentina. For further information, see note 14.
The Company assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill and determined that none of the Company's cash-
generating units have suffered an impairment loss.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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12,

11.1 Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating units
Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to the following cash-generating units.

31.12.2025 31.12.2024
WACC % Book value WACC % Book value
[CEIAN ..t 8,8% 4.072 8,4% 4.072
SPAIN ittt e 8,1% 36.005 8,2% 36.005
= o Lol IR 9,4% 1.127 8,9% 1.127
IFEIANG Leviiiiiee et 8,5% 15.012 8,8% 15.012
56.216 56.216

The recoverable amount of these cash-generating units is determined based on a value in use calculation, which uses
cash flow projections based on financial forecasts prepared by management covering a five-year period and a
discount rate of 8.1-9.4% p.a. (2024: 8.2-8.9% p.a.).

Cash flow projections during the forecast period are based on the same expected gross margins and raw materials
price inflation throughout the forecast period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated
using a steady 1.5% p.a. (2025: 1.5%) growth rate which is the projected long-term average growth rate for the
international seafood market. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on
which recoverable amount is based would not cause carrying amounts of any of the cash generating units to exceed
their recoverable amounts. An increase in weighted average cost of capital of more than 90 bps would cause
impairment of goodwill in S-Europe division.

Subsidiaries and other investments

At 31 December 2025, the Company directly owned nine subsidiaries that are all included in the consolidation. The
direct subsidiaries in addition owned a further seven subsidiaries. The Company holds the majority of voting power in
all of its subsidiaries.

Place of Ownership Ownership  Principal
Name of company incorporation 31.12.2025 31.12.2024  activity
Subsidiaries:
Iceland Seafood ehf. Iceland 100% 100% Sale of seafood
Solo Export ehf. Iceland 100% 100% Not active
Iceland Seafood Ibérica S.A.U. Spain 100% 100% Sale of seafood
- Achernar S.A. Argentina 100% 100% Sale of seafood
- Cigalfer792 S.R.L. Argentina 100% 100% Real estate
- Thorpesca S.A.S. A Argentina 100% Fisheries
Ahumados Dominguez Spain 85% 85% Sale of seafood
Iceland Seafood Barraclough Ltd. UK 100% 100% Real estate
Oceanpath Ltd. Ireland 100% 100% Sale of seafood
- Dunns Seafare Ltd. Ireland 100% 100% Sale of seafood
- Mondi Properties Ireland Ltd. Ireland 100% 100% Real estate
- Carr & Sons Seafood Ltd. Ireland 100% 100% Sale of seafood
- HJ Nolan Ltd. Ireland 100% 100% Sale of seafood
Iceland Seafood France S.A.S. France 100% 100% Sale of seafood
ISG Iceland Seafood GmbH Germany 100% 100% Sale of seafood
ISI Seafood Inc. USA 100% 100% Not active

) In 2025 Iceland Seafood Ibérica S.A.U. founded the company Thorpesca S.A.S. in Argentina (see note 14).

Amounts in EUR thousands
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12.1 Subsidiaries pledged as security
Equity of subsidiaries, except from subsidiaries in Spain, have been pledged for the Group's borrowings.

13. Acquisition of subsidiary
On December 20th, 2024, Iceland Seafood Iberica S.A.U. in Spain, a subsidiary of Iceland Seafood, and Achernar S.A,,
an Argentinian subsidiary of Iberica, signed an agreement to purchase all the issued share capital of Cigalfer792 S.R.L.
in Argentina, effective from January 1st, 2025. Cigalfer792 S.R.L. operates a cold storage facility and is located near
Achernar S.A. The consideration for the share capital was USD 3,350,000. Cigalfer792 S.R.L. was treated as asset
acquisition with its balance becoming part of the Group’s financial statement at the beginning of 2025.

The formal transfer of ownership and operational control of Cigalfer792 S.R.L. took place on January 1st, 2025.

The impact of Cigalfer792 S.R.L. on the Group’s sales in 2025 were USD 0.4 million and it generated profit of USD 0.1
million USD.

In accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, the purchase price of Cigalfer792 SRL was allocated pro-rata to the
acquired assets and liabilities. No goodwill is recognised for asset acquisitions.

The following table in USD summarizes the consideration paid for Cigalfer792 S.R.L. and the recognized amounts of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date, being the January 1st 2025.

1.1.2025

Property, plant and equipment 4.377
Trade and other reCIVADIES ..........oo i ettt ettt e bee s ee e 137
Cash and Bank DAlANCES .......oouiii ettt ettt e et e st e e b e sbe e sare e 8
Assets acquired 4.522
Deferred tax Habilities .......oo. ittt ettt et st esae e e bt e saee e saeeeas 1.004
Trade and OTher PAYADIES ...cc..eieeeiee e e e e e e et e e s eaee e e s eate e e s baeeesnbaeeesasaeesnsaeeas 168
Liabilities assumed 1.172
Total NEt IdENTIfIET @SSETS .. ..iiiiiiiii ettt sttt e h e et e st e et e e s be e sbe e e beesabeenbeeeaeean 3.350
Consideration paid in Cash iN 2024 ........ooouiieiiiiee ettt see et e e e rte e e st e e e e aae e e sssaee s nsaeeeseeeesseeenan 750
Consideration paid in Cash iN 2025 .......coiiiiiiiiee e erte e e st e e e s aae e e ssaee e s naaeeeseeeesseeenan 920
(B3 L g €Yo I o T 10 V=T o USSP 1.680
3.350

Net cash outflow in 2025 in USD relating to acquisition of Cigalfer792 S.R.L.:

2025

Consideration paid in cash during the year 2025 ...........oeieeiieieiiie e e e e e e e aee e e aneeeeaes 920
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquIred .........cccoeeeieer i e s (8)
912

Amounts in EUR thousands
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14. Formation of Thorpesca S.A.S. and subsequent acquisition of vessels and fishing rights

15.

On July 18th 2025, THORPESCA S.A.S., a new Argentinian subsidiary of Iceland Seafood Ibérica S.A.U., signed an
agreement to acquire two freezer trawlers along with associated fishing licenses and historical fishing rights from
FOOD ARTS S.A. The purchase price amounts to USD 5.8 million. USD 1.2 million for the vessels and USD 4.8 million
for the fishing rights.

The transaction has been accounted for as an asset acquisition, as the assets acquired do not constitute a business
under IFRS 3.

The vessels are recognized as additions to property, plant and equipment and are depreciated on a straight-line basis.
The historical fishing rights have an indefinite lifetime and are therefore not amortized. The recoverable amount is
tested for impairment each year. The results of the impairment test is that there is no indication of impairment.

The acquisition is aligned with the Group’s long-term strategic objectives to strengthen operations in Argentina and to
diversify the product offering of Argentinian shrimp. It provides Iceland Seafood Ibérica S.A.U. with direct access to

high-quality sea-frozen shrimp and supports vertical integration within the Group’s value chain.

The acquired assets are expected to enhance raw material access for existing land-based operations and enable
expansion into new premium markets for sea-frozen products.

Thorpesca S.A.S. impact on the Group’s sales in 2025 were USD 1.3 million and it generated loss of USD 24 thousand.

The remaining payments related to the acquisition amount to a total of USD 2.0 million, comprising USD 666 thousand
due in 2026, USD 667 thousand due in 2027, and USD 667 thousand due in 2028.

Inventories
31.12.2025 31.12.2024
R LA 0 =T o T TSRS 5.929 3.397
[ 10T g =T I =Ze Yo Yo 3PN 69.920 55.082
(04 o 1T T 1Y7=T a1 o o =TSRSS 3.612 3.378
79.461 61.857

15.1 Recognised as an expense
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense is:

2025 2024
(000 1 fo ] Y 11O PUURTRRRRRNt 410.948 375.899
15.2 Movement in write-downs to net realisable value 31.12.2025 31.12.2024
N = o U o SRR (759) (1.217)
Write-downs of inventory to a net realisable value ..........cccccevieiiiicii e, (2.718) (783)
Reversal of such write-downs 3.003 1.241
At 31 December .....cccceevveeennennn. (474) (759)

15.3 Inventories pledged as security
Inventories, except from Inventories in IS Iberica Group and Ahumados Dominguez of EUR 66.7 million, have been
pledged for the Group's borrowings.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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16. Trade and other receivables
31.12.2025 31.12.2024

Trade and Other reCEIVADIES ........eeeeiecciiieiee e e e e e raraeee s 69.510 69.448
Allowance for doubtful @CCOUNTS .......cccveiiiiiieeccieeeeee et e tre e e err e e e earee s (903) (1.096)
68.607 68.352

Allowance has been made for doubtful accounts and sales returns. This allowance has been determined by
management in reference to past default experience. Management considers that the carrying amount of receivables
approximates their fair value.

16.1 Trade receivables

The expected credit losses (ECL) on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors such as general economic conditions in the markets the Group operates. This analysis also
takes into account if receivables are credit insured or not at end of the year, recoverability of credit insured
receivables is in the range from 90-95%. Around 83% of Group's receivables were credit insured.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs
earlier.

16.2 Trade receivables expected credit loss
The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group’s provision matrix.

Trade receivables - days past due
31.12.2025 Not past due <30 31-60 61-90 >90

Uninsured receivables

Expected credit loss rate 1,8% 3,2% 10,0% 18,0% 100,0%
Estimated total gross carrying

amount at default 7.770 839 385 1 631
Expected credit loss (ECL) 140 27 38 0 631

Insured receivables

Expected credit loss rate 1,0% 2,0% 8,0% 15,0% 100,0%
Estimated total gross carrying 48.654 10.357 596 94 184
amount at default

Expected credit loss (ECL) 37 14 3 1 12
o) 7 |l q o T=Tot =To ol =T [l o 1Y SRS 903

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Trade receivables - days past due
31.12.2024 Not past due <30 31-60 61-90 >90

Uninsured receivables

Expected credit loss rate 1,9% 2,5% 10,0% 18,0% 100,0%
Estimated total gross carrying

amount at default 6.922 1.858 315 7 817
Expected credit loss (ECL) 132 46 32 2 817

Insured receivables

Expected credit loss rate 1,0% 2,0% 8,0% 15,0% 100,0%
Estimated total gross carrying 50.529 8.301 478 87 133
amount at default

Expected credit loss (ECL) 39 12 3 1 12
TOtal @XPECLEA CreTit IOSS ..iiiiieiiiiiiiie it e e st e e s bb e e s sbaeessbteeesbaeeeebeeessaseeas 1.096
16.3 Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts 2025 2024

N B - [ o VT TV RSP (1.096) (921)
Change in impairment @StIMAte ........cccveiiiiee i e e sraee e 116 (500)
Amounts written off as uncollectible 0 189
AMOUNTS FECOVEIEM .eeiuviieieiieeceiee e ettt e sitee e ettt e et e e et e e e s saaeeesareeessseeessseesanseeesnnsaeesnnes 72 139
EXxchange rate differEnCe ......oocuvieeeciie et et 5 (3)
N B A D=l Y o= SRRSO (903) (1.096)

16.4 Receivables pledged as security
Trade receivables, except from receivables in IS Iberica Group and Ahumados Dominguez, have been pledged for the
Group's borrowings.

17. Other assets
31.12.2025 31.12.2024

[T [To I q o< 4 YT R 5.298 4.576
Value added and capital Gain taXES .....ccccueeeeiieeieiiiie et 4.030 3.536
Fair value of cash flow hedES ......c.uueieiiiiieiee e 1.061 1.732

10.389 9.844

18. Cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balances consist of cash and bank accounts. Cash amounts are insignificant.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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19. Issued capital and share premium
Authorized Issued Outstanding
19.1 Shares shares shares shares Book value
At 1January 2024 ......cooeeeiiieenienieeeeeneee e 3.064.480 3.064.480 3.064.480 27.456
At 31 December 2024 ......cc.cccoeeeeneniieneenenie e 3.064.480 3.064.480 3.064.480 27.456
At 31 December 2025 ......ccceveeieniniieneenienie e 3.064.480 3.064.480 3.064.480 27.456
Fully paid shares, which have a par value of ISK 1, carry one vote per share and carry right to dividends.
Share Share
19.2 Issued capital and share premium capital premium Total
At 1January 2024 ......cccceeveereennene 27.456 44.084 71.540
Treasury shares purchased (16) (16)
At 31 December 2024 .........oeoeuieeeeeee e 27.456 44.068 71.524
Transfer of share premium to accumulated l0ss ........cccceevvieeeiineenn. (25.203) (25.203)
At 31 December 2025 27.456 18.865 46.321
20. Reserves
31.12.2025 31.12.2024

TrANSIAtION FESEIVE .oveiiiieeeciiee ettt eetee sttt e et eeebr e e ebe e e e bee e eetbeeessbaeessbaeeesbeeeseareeesnes (1.120) 21
Statutory reserve 430 430
EQUILY FESEIVE .eeeieie ettt ettt e e e st e e e e s st e e e s s saabbbeeeeessannnnnees 182 182
Unrealised profit of SUDSIAIAries .....cceeiiiiiiiiiiee e 30.989 26.147

30.481 26.780

20.1 Translation reserve

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the results and net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from
their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. Euro) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. Exchange differences previously
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve (in respect of translating both the net assets of foreign
operations and hedges of foreign operations) are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the foreign operation.

20.2 Hedging reserve

The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair
value of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss arising on changes in fair
value of the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging
reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss, or included as a
basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item, consistent with the Group’s accounting policy.

20.3 Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Icelandic Act no 2/1995 on Public Limited Companies, the Company is to retain 10% of its
annual profit in a statutory reserve until it equals 10% of the outstanding shares. After that, the Company is to retain
5% until the reserve equals 25% of the outstanding shares.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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20.4 Equity reserve
The equity-settled employee benefits reserve relates to share options granted by the Company to its employees under
its employee share option plan.

At 31 December 2025, executives and senior employees held options to buy 15.775.000 shares in the Company, no
new share options were granted during the year. Weighted average lifetime of outstanding options at year end was
3.7 years, the exercise price is in the range from ISK 5.4 to 10.23 per share. Options granted prior to 2020, will vest
over four years from issuance, with the first 12/48 of the option vesting at the first anniversary of grant date and the
remaining 36/48 vesting monthly after that. Options granted during 2020, will vest over four years from issuance,
with the first 36/48 vesting at the third anniversary of grant date and being exercisable at that day. The remaining
12/48 will vest monthly after that but are first exercisable at the time the Optionee ceases to be employed by the
Company. The exercise price of options granted is the same as market price at Nasdaq stock exchange at the time
options are granted. All options are subject to the condition that the Optionee remains an employee of the Company.
The options carry neither rights to dividends nor voting rights and are valued using the Black Scholes option pricing
model. During 2025 no shares options were exercised. During the year no options were expensed as they were fully
expensed in year end 2024 (2024:1 thousands).

Average exercise  Stock options
price per share (thousands)

AT 1 JANUANY 2025 oottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e eas 9,36 15.775
AT BL.02.2025 ettt ettt ettt ettt et e ettt e e e e e e e e e aeaeaeeaaaaaaaaaaens 9,36 15.775
Exercisable stock options at 31.12.2025 .......c.ueeeeiieeeeiieeeecieeesieeeesiee e esre e e snre e e sareeeenees 15.775
AT L JANUATNY 2024 oottt ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaas 8,78 25.775
(07T a1 | =Y PR 7,90 (10.000)
AT BL.02.2024 ...ttt ettt ettt et ettt e e et et e e e e e e e e e aeaeaeeaeaaaaaaaeens 9,36 15.775
Exercisable stock options at 31.12.2024 .........oeeeeiieeeeiie e e ctee e e e ere e e e e 15.775

Assumptions used in the Black-Scholes calculation:

Expected risk Remaining

Expected term free interest Estimated lifetime in

Year option granted Exercise price (years) rate volatility years
5,40 4 0,31% 3,70% 0,4

9,55 4 0,00% 14,10% 3,7

10,23 4 0,00% 19,29% 5,0

20.5 Unrealised profit of subsidiaries

If a share of profit of subsidiaries is in excess of dividends received from those companies or dividend that has been
decided to distribute, the difference is to be transferred from retained earnings to a restricted reserve among equity.
If a company's shareholding in its subsidiary is sold or written off, the aforementioned reserve is to be dissolved via
transfer to retained earnings or accumulated deficit, as applicable.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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21. Borrowings

31.12.2025 31.12.2024
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Revolving credit facilities ........ccccvvveriviieeniiiieenieen, 86.662 77.093
Other bank 10aNns .......ooocciiviee e 4,912 35.590 32.537 7.881
91.574 35.590 109.630 7.881

21.1 Revolving credit facilities

The Group’s main sources of financing are a multi currency revolving credit facility with an Icelandic financial
institution, a 3.5 year unsecured bond listed on Nasdaq Iceland, two bills listed on Nasdaq Iceland and credit facilities
with number of banks in Spain which finance the Southern Europe division. At end of December 2025 the total
headroom of the Group was EUR 37.8 million including cash.

The facility with the institution in Iceland has a cap of EUR 32 million with EUR 19.8 million draw down at year end
(2024: EUR 9.4 million). The facility has been extended to 31 March 2026.

The Group has credit facilities in place with number of banks in Spain. Total amount of these loans was EUR 61.8
million at year end (2024: EUR 51.3 million).

The Group's subsidiaries in UK and Ireland (Northern Europe division) entered into a loan agreement with a foreign
bank, which was finalised in December 2021. In relation to the sale of Iceland Seafood UK, an amendment agreement
was finalised for that facility, to reflect a reduction in borrowing need post the transaction. After that amendment,
the loan agreement consisted of a 3 year term loan of GBP 3.5 million against pledge in the Groups properties in UK
and Ireland, and a revolving borrowing base facility of EUR 12.0 million against inventories and receivables in Ireland.
The Facility agreement was fully paid on 30 April 2025 and the borrowing base of EUR 12.0 million against inventories
and receivables in Ireland, was added to a multi currency revolving credit facility with an Icelandic financial institution.
Iceland Seafood hf. fully repaid the three-year term loan to the foreign financial institution on 20 May 2025. Iceland
Seafood hf. is the lender to Iceland Seafood Barraclough.

In June 2021, the Company completed a private placement of a four-year unsecured bond totaling ISK 3,400 million,
fixed at EUR 23.1 million through a currency swap. The bond carried semi-annual interest payments, with the full
principal due in a single installment in June 2025. It was listed on Nasdaqg Iceland. On 7 April 2025, the Company
successfully completed a new unsecured bond issuance, raising ISK 4,000 million, fixed at EUR 27.6 million via a
currency swap, with a 3.5-year maturity. At the same time, I1SK 2,880 million in nominal value of ICESEA 25 06 bonds
were repurchased, reducing the outstanding balance of the bond maturing on 20 June 2025 to ISK 520 million, which
was fully repaid on 23 June 2025.

The parent company has outstanding two offerings of 6 months bills for total ISK 2.660 million in total, at end of
December 2025. In both cases hedging was put in place to fix the liability in EUR. The total fixed amount at end of
December 2025 amounts to EUR 16.8 million. The bills are listed on Nasdaq Iceland.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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21.2 Aggregated maturities
The contractual repayments of other bank loans are as follows:

31.12.2025 31.12.2024
In 2026 / 2025 4912 32.537
In 2027 / 2026 3.806 3.814
In 2028 / 2027 29.936 2.552
In 2029 / 2028 869 1.436
[ =] PP PPPT R PPTPPPPPNN 979 79
40.502 40.418

21.3 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non—cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Borrowings and lease liabilities 2025 2024

LA =Y T =] PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPP 119.105 115.642
Net increase in revolving credit facility ........cccveeiiiieiiiee e 9.784 8.889
Increase (decrease) N DIllS ...c..uviccveri it eetre e e eare e e sabee e esabeeeen 1.281 (1.458)
Increase in 1ease llabilities .......coccveieeieece e 1.164 411
New borrowings 12.927 3.667
REPAYIMENTS ..eiiuiiiiieiiieeteeeie et et e st e et et eesete et e e esbeessaeessaeesbeesseeesseessseessasesesensenssseenes (13.884) (9.889)
[ Q0] o [t ol [T = 1T s T (o Y- Vo SRR (1.030) 1.843
AL 3L DECEMDET «..eviieiiiieeeetie ettt sttt e s te e e s sabe e e sabbeessabeeessabaeesaabeeessreeesnns 129.347 119.105

21.4 Weighted average interests
Weighted average interests rate on longterm loans in 2025 are 6.6% (2024: 9.4%).

21.5 Assets pledged as security

Borrowings are secured with most of the Group's assets, except from assets and equity of the Spanish subsidiaries.
The revolving credits are secured with inventories, receivables, intellectual property rights and shares in subsidiaries.
The other bank loans are secured with inventories and receivables. The finance leases are secured with the assets

leased.

22. Other liabilities

31.12.2025 31.12.2024
Accrued payroll related expenses .... 3.075 2.902
ACCrUE OTNEI EXPENSES ....uveeeieiieeciieeeeiieeeetteeeetteesstree e s ttee e esateeessreeeesnsseeesseeeesssneensnns 2.872 3.872
Current portion of deferred purchase consideration (see notes 13 and 14) ................. 1.536 2.504
INCOME TAX 1t e e s s e e e s s s e e e e s s e e e e as 1.202 1.087
Value @dded tAX «oueeeeeeeeiieiiie e s 852 607
9.537 10.972

Iceland Seafood International hf. 31

Amounts in EUR thousands
Financial Statements 2025 - Audited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2025

23. Leases

23.1 Leased assets

Property Machinery

and land and equipment Total
Balance at 1January 2025 ....cccueviviiieiniieeeiieceiee e 619 770 1.389
Adjustments for indexed 1€aSEes ........ccccevvueiiriieiiiiieeeniee s 2 2
New or renewed leases 640 524 1.164
(DT o] =Tol =1 4 o PRSP (208) (393) (601)
Balance at 31 December 2025 .......ccocieiiiriienieenieeee e 1.053 901 1.954
23.2 Recognised in profit and loss

2025 2024

Depreciation expense from 18aSed aSSETS ......ccvevcuieieiiieeeiiieeecre et e e e e 601 570
Interest expense on lease liabilities 83 80
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 684 650

23.3 Lease liabilities
Maturity analysis (not discounted)

NOL AtEr than L YEATI ..veiiiiei ittt st e st e e e sbae e e sbaee s
Later than 1 year and not [ater than 5 Years .....ccvvvveeiiieeeiiie e
Later than 5 VAN ittt e e st e e s bae e s aba e e s narae e sane

31.12.2025 31.12.2024

593 571
1.410 747
591 655
2.594 1.973

The total cash outflow for leases amount to EUR 0.6 million (2024: 0.6 million). The remaining lease term of leases as

of the reporting date, ranges from 1 to 22 years.

24. Financial instruments
24.1 Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

Amortised cost (trade and other receivables)
Amortised COSt (OTNEI @SSELS) .uiiiuiiiiiiiie ittt e e e e ee e e aaeeens
DEFIVALIVES .eeeeeeeieciiieeie ettt ee et e e e ettt e e e e e s sttt e e e e e s ssaaeee e e e s anaaeeeeeesansseneeeeanannes
Cash and bank balanCes .......cocueiiiiiie e

Financial liabilities
AMOrtised COSt (DOITOWINGS) ..veviiiiiee ettt e e e e et e e e eaaee s
Amortised cost (trade and other payables) .......ccceeeciieeeiiiie e s
Amortised cost (other liabilities)

Iceland Seafood International hf. 32

31.12.2025 31.12.2024

68.607 68.352
517 106
1.061 1.732
15.727 12.900
127.164 117.511
53.252 44.697
7.483 9.278

Amounts in EUR thousands
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24.2 Financial risk management objectives

The Company's Board of Directors and senior executive team has the overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Group's risk management framework, with regards to market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
operational risk. The objective of the Group's risk policies is to manage and control risk exposures within acceptable
levels, while optimizing the return.

24.3 Foreign currency risk management

The Group's foreign currency forward contracts are measured at fair value with discounted cash flow valuation
techniques. Future cash flow (which is all anticipated within the next 12 months) is estimated based on forward
exchange rates (from observable forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period) and contract forward
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various counterparties. The Company mitigates foreign
currency risk from ISK-denominated loans by using hedging to fix the liability in EUR.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are as follows.

Assets Liabilities
31.12.2025 31.12.2024 31.12.2025 31.12.2024

8.414 6.291 7.716 6.396
19.616 25.657 7.488 9.159
16 2.648 828 877
4.634 4.592 4.628 7.094
13 70 10 44
32.693 39.258 20.670 23.570

Sensitivity analysis
A 10% strengthening of the EUR against the following currencies at 31 December would have changed result after
income tax by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,

remain constant.

2025 2024
GBP ettt ettt ettt ettt et e r et er et s et ee et et e e e ene e ereeenaeen 56 (8)
L6 5 PP PPPPPPPPPPPPOY 970 1.320
ISK et ee et s e e e e e ee e e e et e e e e et e e et et er e ee e e en et en e e r et e en s e s et en e er e eeneeenens (65) (2.944)
AARS ettt e ettt r ettt et n et en et s ee e es et ee e en e en e rnaene 0 (200)
[0 4 o 1= RSP (2) (2)

A 10% weakening of the EUR against the above currencies would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above on the basis that all other variables remain constant. The following significant
exchange rates were applied during the year:

Average rate Closing rate

2025 2024 2025 2024
0,8564 0,8464 0,8728 0,8298
1,1268 1,0825 1,1759 1,0382
144,6500 149,3100 146,6800 143,4000
168,1977 163,6992 185,6709 164,8276
1,5769 1,4820 1,6087 1,4936
11,7126 11,6231 11,8100 11,8122

Amounts in EUR thousands
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24.4 Interest rate risk management
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Group's interest bearing financial instruments was:

Variable rate instruments 31.12.2025 31.12.2024

FINANCIAl @SSELS .uieiiiiiie i ettt e e e e e e e e e s e ara e e e e e e e e bt e e e e e e e ennaaaeaeeeans 15.727 12.900

FINANCIal HADIITIES .uvveeicireiiciiee ettt et e e ree e e s be e e eabe e e snr e e e sanaeeesaneeesanens (127.164) (117.511)
(111.437) (104.611)

A change of 50 basis points in interest rates during the year would have impacted pre-tax profits by EUR 515
thousands (2024: 539 thousands).

24.5 Credit risk management

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers spread across geographic areas. The maximum credit risk of
financial assets is their book value. The Group manages its credit risk by using credit insurances alongside ongoing
credit evaluation on the financial conditions of relevant customers. At year end 83% of receivables are credit insured.
Further information about credit risk is shown in notes 16 and 28.15.

24.6 Liquidity risk management

The Group manages liquidity risk by ensuring sufficient liquidity is available from current bank facilities to meet
foreseable needs and to invest cash assets safely and profitably. This policy has remained unchanged from previous
periods. At end of 2025 the total funding headroom of the Group was 36.8 million including cash.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities,
including estimated interest payments.

Carrying Contractual Less than More than
31 December 2025 amount cash flow 1year 1-3 years 3 years
Non-current borrowings* ............. 42.685 48.100 7.369 37.972 2.759
Current borrowings .......cccceeeveeenne 86.662 86.662 86.662
Other liabilities ......cc.ccevevrveennennne 60.735 60.735 60.735
190.082 195.497 154.766 37.972 2.759
Carrying Contractual Less than More than
31 December 2024 amount cash flow 1year 1-3 years 3 years
Non-current borrowings* ............. 42.012 51.143 9.617 33.875 7.651
Current borrowings .......cccceeeveeennee 77.093 77.093 77.093
Other liabilities 53.975 53.975 53.975
173.080 182.211 140.685 33.875 7.651

*Non- current borrowings includes Long term loans and leases

24.7 Fair value measurements
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
Consolidated Financial Statements approximate their fair values.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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25.

26.

Events after the reporting period

On February 3rd 2026, a malfunction occurred in the cooling system at the cold storage facility of Cigalfer792, a
subsidiary of the Group located in Argentina. Based on preliminary assessments, it appears that the temperature in
the facility did not decrease significantly during the incident and, as at the reporting date, it remains unclear whether
there has been any impact on inventory.

The incident has been reported to the Group’s insurance broker. As at the reporting date, the potential financial
impact of the malfunction has not yet been determined. The Group maintains insurance coverage for such events, and
based on information currently available, management does not expect the incident to have a material impact on the
Group’s operations or financial performance in 2026.

Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between the Group and
other related parties are disclosed below.

26.1 Trading transactions
During the year, Group entities entered into the following trading transactions with related parties that are not
members of the Group:

2025 2024

Purchases of goods and services, from companies related to Board Members ............ 145.697 111.943
Sales Of Z00US AN SEIVICES ....uiiiviiiiiiiiie ettt siae e s ae e s sabaeeeas 280 0

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the reporting period:
31.12.2025 31.12.2024

Amounts owed to companies related to Board Members ........ccccoecceeeiieeeciiieeeeciee e 17.095 13.794
Amounts owed by companies related to Board Members ........ccceeeeieeeeiieeeciieeccnenn. 0 82

Purchases of goods and services from and sales to related parties were made at the same prices and terms to non
related parties.

26.2 Compensation to key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel was as follows:

Shares at 2025

2025 2024 year end*
Birna Einarsdottir, ChairMan .......eeecoeecvveeeee et eeivreeeees 62 57
Bergpor Baldvinsson, Board Member ........cccceeceiivcieeiiiiec e, 32 30 322.304
Halldor Leifsson, Board Member .......cccvvveeeeeeeivveeeeieecciieeee e 31 29 455.000
Ingunn Agnes Kro, Board Member .........coccvveevciieeciiiee s, 35 30
Jakob Valgeir Flosason, Board Member ........cccccveeeieeeiccieeescieeeesieeenn, 31 29 344,961
Gunnlaugur K Hreinsson, Alternate Board Member .........ccccccecveeennees 4 4 25.826
ZEgir PAll Fridbertsson, CEO .....c.eieviieeeiiie et e 491 472 1.000
Other Key management ** ........cccoooiiiiiiee e eene e 780 836 45.120
Total salaries and benefits for the BOD and executive
MANAZEMENT ..ttt ettt et et e reeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 1.466 1.487 1.194.211

* Number of shares (in thousands) held directly by Directors and Executive Management or parties related to them.
** Included in other key management is the Group’s CFO, and the CEO’s of the subsidiaries (2025: 4 FTE, 2024: 4 FTE).

Amounts in EUR thousands
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The remuneration of key management is determined by a Remuneration Committee, having regarded to their
performance, general market trends and other factors.

27. Approval of financial statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors and the CEO and authorised for issue
on February 26th 2026.

28. Significant accounting policies

28.1 Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and additional disclosure requirements in the Icelandic Act no. 3/2006 on
Financial Statements. The presentation of the consolidated statement of Profit or Loss is not in all respects in
accordance with IFRS since management believes the current presentation of exceptional item as a seperate line in
the statement gives a more appropriate view of the Group’s operations.

The same accounting policies (except mentioned here above), presentation and methods of computation are followed
in these Consolidated Financial Statements as were applied in the latest Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2024.

28.2 Basis of preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below. Share-based payments transactions are valued according to IFRS 2.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

28.3 Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the Financial Statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group has power over the subsidiaries, is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an entity, it has power over the entity when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the entity unilaterally. The
Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company's voting rights in an
entity are sufficient to give it power, including:

= the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

= potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

= rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders' meetings.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total Comprehensive Income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the Financial Statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intraGroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

28.4 Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

28.5 Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business, less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or Groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.

28.6 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal Groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is considered as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset (or disposal Group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition.

Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposals Groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

28.7 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

28.7.1 Sale of seafood

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being at the point the goods
are delivered to the customer and titles have passed. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods are
delivered to the customer as this represents the point in time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required before payment is due. There is no right of return under the
Group's return policy and therefore no refund liability is recognised.

28.7.2 Dividend and interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment
has been established.

28.8 Leasing

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a
leased asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except
for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For
these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise fixed payments less any incentives, variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, expected
residual guarantees and the excercise price of purchase options if the Group expects to excercise the option.

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to
exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.
The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and
the leased asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers those payments occurs.

Amounts in EUR thousands
Iceland Seafood International hf. 38 Financial Statements 2025 - Audited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2025

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for any
lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Group has used this practical expedient.

28.9 Foreign currencies

The Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Euro, the Group’s presentation currency. In
preparing the Financial Statements of each individual Group entity, transactions in foreign currencies other than the
entity's functional currency are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in such currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Profits and losses arising on exchange are included in net profit or loss for the period.

For the purpose of presenting Consolidated Financial Statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations (including comparatives) are expressed in Euro using exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Income and expense items of foreign operations, are translated at the average exchange rates for each month.
Translation differences from foreign operations are posted to translation reserves among equity. Such translation
differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as asset and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at end of each reporting period. Exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

28.10 Employee benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

28.10.1 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries and annual leave in the
year the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

28.10.2 Share based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-
settled employee benefits reserve.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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28.11 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

28.11.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the Consolidated Income Statement because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

28.11.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

28.11.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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28.12 Property, plant and equipment

Property and equipment are recognized as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured in a reliable manner. Property and
equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any. Land is
not depreciated. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property and equipment if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of property and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

The depreciable amount of the asset is allocated on a straight-line basis over its useful life. The depreciation charge
for each period is recognized as an expense. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at each balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

In the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in the Consolidated Income Statement.

28.13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

28.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-
first-out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

28.15 Financial assets

28.15.1 Recognition of financial assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

28.15.2 Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at amortised cost are debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost are trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash.

28.15.3 Financial assets at fair value

Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual cash flows
and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI). All other debt investments and equity investments are measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL). The Group currently holds no financial assets measured at fair value.

Amounts in EUR thousands
Iceland Seafood International hf. 41 Financial Statements 2025 - Audited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2025

28.15.4 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on its trade receivables, that are measured at
amortised cost. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate. The Group's estimate
for trade receivable ECL is described in detail in note 16.

The Group writes off afinancial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

28.15.5 Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

28.16 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

28.16.1 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as ‘other financial liabilities'. Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade
and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

28.17 Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives in respect of cash flow hedges. Hedges
of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges. The Group has elected to
continue to apply the hedging requirements of IAS 39, as permitted by IFRS 9.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and
the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable
to the hedged risk.

28.17.1 Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, and is included in the ‘other
gains and losses' line item.
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29.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or
loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item.
However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial
liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial
liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the management of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to

which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2025

30. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

30.1 Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1 January 2025.

- 1AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates How to assess whether a currency is
exchangeable, and how to determine the
exchange rate when it is not.

The adoption of the amendments stated above has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts
reported in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group has not early adopted the following new standards or other amendments to IFRSs that have been issued

and are permitted for early adoption.
Effective date

- IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements 1 January 2027

- IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without public accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2028

Management believes that the adoption of IFRS 18 will have an impact on the presentation of information in the
financial statements without affecting accounting estimates. The European Union has not yet endorsed the adoption
of IFRS 18 and IFRS 19, but endorsement of IFRS 18 is expected in the first quarter of 2026. Management also believes
that the adoption of other standards or amendments to standards in issue that have not yet entered into force will
have no or insignificant impact on the financial statements.

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Quarterly Statements (unaudited)
for the year ended 31 December 2025

Quarterly Statements
The Group’s quarterly statements are not audited. Summary of the Group’s results by quarters is specified as

follows:
For the year 2025
Q4 Q3 Q2 Ql Total
Revenue:
Sales of seafood ........cccccveeveennennns 152.625 125.908 127.342 132.088 537.963
ElIMINGLtIONS cvvvvereeeeeeeereeeeeneeseeens (15.919) (12.164) (12.772) (12.835) (53.690)
136.706 113.744 114.570 119.253 484.273
Operating results:
Operating profit .......ccoccevuerenenen. 7.885 3.696 2.637 4.432 18.650
Net finance costs and
exchange rate difference ........... (1.338) (1.945) (2.635) (2.130) (8.048)
Normalised PBT ......ceccrveersnnnnne 6.547 1.751 2 2.302 10.602
Exceptional costs .......cccceverceriene (60) 40 (188) (425) (633)
Profit (loss) before taxes ........... 6.487 1.791 (186) 1.877 9.969
INCOME TAX cvrrvereereereeeereeseneesenens (1.669) (348) 286 (883) (2.614)
Profit for the period . 4.818 1.443 100 994 7.355
ASSETS .evviiieiiie e 279.385 243.697 251.467 256.228
Liabilities ....cooevvveeeeecieeceeceeeeees 197.012 166.122 175.444 179.532
For the year 2024
Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Total
Revenue:
Sales of seafood .......ccocevevrenene. 142.019 106.884 105.712 127.153 481.768
ElIMINGLtIONS cvvvvereeeeeeeereeeeeseesenens (12.854) (4.888) (7.515) (13.332) (38.589)
129.165 101.996 98.197 113.821 443.179
Operating results:
Operating profit ....c.ccoceevvverereennn 8.636 2.257 720 2.788 14.401
Net finance costs and
exchange rate difference ........... (3.696) (895) (1.443) (926) (6.960)
Normalised PBT ......cccccceeerecnnnen 4.940 1.362 (723) 1.862 7.441
Exceptional costs .......ccceverceruene (401) (1.832) (416) (863) (3.512)
Profit (loss) before taxes ........... 4.539 (470) (1.139) 999 3.929
INCOME taX .oovveeveceieiiienas (294) (269) 331 (921) (1.153)
Profit (loss) for the period ......... 4.245 (739) (808) 78 2.776
ASSELS e 253.922 239.123 253.324 272.419
Liabilities .. 177.705 167.700 180.848 199.546

Amounts in EUR thousands
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Statement of Corporate Governance

About Iceland Seafood International

Iceland Seafood International hf (hereafter referred to as “Iceland Seafood”, the “Company” or “ISI”) is a holding
company for Group of subsidiaries, that are leading suppliers of North Atlantic seafood and one of the largest
exporters of seafood from Iceland. The Group is headquartered in Iceland and has subsidiaries in the Spain, Argentina,
Ireland, Iceland, France, Germany and United Kingdom. The Group operates across three divisions; Value-Added
Southern Europe, Value-Added Northern Europe and our Sales and Distribution Division. The Value-Added Divisions
have processing factories and cold stores in their respective regions with Southern Europe also having a satellite
facility in Argentina.

Corporate Governance structure

Iceland Seafood's corporate governance framework is defined by Act No. 2/1995 on Public Limited Companies
(hereafter referred to as the “Act on Public Companies”), the Nasdaq Iceland Rules and is set out in the Company’s
Articles of Association. Under its Articles of Association, the Company is governed by shareholders' meetings, the
Company's Board of Directors (hereafter referred to as the “Board of Directors” or the “Board”) and the Chief
Executive Officer. The Shareholders hold the decision-making powers in the Company through shareholders meetings
that are held at least once a year. The Board of Directors is authorized to allow shareholders to participate in
proceedings at shareholders’ meetings through electronic means without being present at the meeting venue if it
deems that available equipment is sufficiently secure for this purpose. When organising shareholders meetings, the
Board does so in a manner that allows shareholders to exercise their decision powers and express their opinions, i.e.,
by publishing all information and documents on the Company’s website. Between shareholders meetings, the Board
holds supreme authority of the Company. In accordance with Article 70 (5) of the Act on Public Companies the Board
of Directors has set itself formal Rules of Procedure which are supplementary to the Articles. According to the Rules
the Board of Directors may elect committees that operate on behalf of the Board. All Board committees set
themselves specific rules of procedure.

The Company adheres to the principles set forth in the Corporate Governance Guidelines, published by the Iceland
Chamber of Commerce in co-operation with SA Business Iceland and Nasdaq Iceland (hereafter referred to as the
“Guidelines”). As of the date of this statement there are two deviations from full compliance with the Guidelines. The
Company does not have a board nomination committee, the reason being that due to the nature of the Company and
close connection to the seafood sector, it is considered important to have representatives from key seafood suppliers
of the Company on its board. These board members bring both valuable sourcing capabilities and sector knowledge to
the board of Iceland Seafood. At the date of this statement, three of five board members of the Company are
directors and/or owners of key suppliers of Iceland Seafood and are as such not independent from the company.
These board members do not participate in dealings with items connected to their own business or business that is
related to them, except from normal trading of seafood.

Board of Directors

The Company's Board of Directors shall be composed of three to five members and up to two alternate members,
elected at the Annual General Meeting for a term of one year. In 2025 the total number of Board meetings were 14
and the Board was competent to make decisions in all meetings. The Board annually evaluates its own work, the work
of the CEO and the Company’s operation. This assessment is based on self-assessment of the board, examination of
whether the Board has operated in accordance with its Rules of Procedures. The Board shall evaluate the work of the
CEO and the Company’s operation in general, the CEO shall not be present for this evaluation. The Chairman of the
Board shall present and discuss the results of the assessment with the CEO. The Board currently consists of five main
members and one alternate member. As of the date of this statement the Board of Directors consists of the following
members:
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Chairman of the Board of Directors

Name: Birna Einarsdéttir
First elected: October 2023
Education and experience: Birna has over 30 years experience in the banking sector, both in

islandsbanki and in the Royal Bank of Scotland. Before her banking
career she worked in marketing as the Marketing Director of the
television station St6d 2, among other roles.

Birna holds a degree in Business Administration, Cand.oecon from
University of Iceland and MBA from University of Edinburgh.

Member of board or management: Birna is also chairman of the board Verdbréfamidstéd islands hf
(VBM), and is a board member of Skel, Kjarnafaedi Nordlenska ehf,
Thor Landeldi ehf and Mila.

Shareholdings in the Company as at 31.12.2025 None
and other interest related to large
shareholders, competitors, customers or

suppliers

Board member

Name: Berghdr Baldvinsson

First elected: March 2020

Education and experience: Bergpdr has been the CEO of Nesfiskur since 1979. Nesfiskur is a
family-owned company that Bergbér and his parents stated in 1975.
Working at Nesfiskur since a teenager, Bergbdr has familiarized
himself with every aspect of the industry. The small family company
has grown constantly from the beginning, today Nesfiskur and its
subsidiaries employ around 400 people.
Berghdér has been a board member of various companies and
pension funds for the past two decades.

Member of board or manangement Bergpdr is a board member of FSM hf, Umbudamidlun hf, Nesfiskur

ehf and companies within Nesfiskur Group.

Shareholdings in the Company as at 31.12.2025 Nesfiskur ehf, owned by Bergpor and his family, holds 322,304,386
and other interest related to large shares. Nesfiskur is also a large supplier of seafood to the Company.
shareholders, competitors, customers or

suppliers
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Board member

Name: Halldér Leifsson

First elected: March 2020

Education and experience: Halldér is Marketing and Sales Director at Fisk Seafood ehf. He has
worked in the seafood industry since 1990, in all the key segments
including management of production, fleet, sales, office, finance and
in the role of deputy MD and MD.
Halldor holds a degree in Fishery Technology from the Technical
University of Iceland and has studied Business Management in the
University of Reykjavik and business courses in University of Iceland.

Member of board or manangement Halldér is the main owner and board member of the company Haf-

sjor radgjof sif.

Shareholdings in the Company as at 31.12.2025 Fisk Seafood, the employer of Halldor, holds 454,841,302 shares.
and other interest related to large Fisk Seafood is also a large supplier of seafood to the Company.
shareholders, competitors, customers or

suppliers

Board member

Name: Ingunn Agnes Kro

First elected: February 2019 as an alternate board member and as a board
member from March 2020

Education and experience: Ingunn is the former general manager of Jarévarmi slhf., an entity
holding the Icelandic pension funds' investment in HS Orka, energy
producer and provider. Previously Ingunn was a Director of
Administration and Communication at Skeljungur hf., a company
listed on Nasdag Iceland, heading internal and external
communication, incl. legal matters, marketing, public relations and
human resources, and before that the company’s general counsel,
compliance officer and secretary to the board.

Ingunn holds a B.A. and M.A. degree in law and an MBA from the
University of Iceland, as well as being a certified securities broker.

Member of board or manangement Ingunn is currently the chairman of RARIK ohf. (the state's electricity
grid company), a board member of Sjéva Almennar tryggingar hf.
(insurance company), Freyja slhf. (private equity fund), Miklatorg hf.
(IKEA franchisee), Soltun heilbrigdispjonusta ehf. (nursing homes)
and the Wetlands Fund (environmental NGO).

Shareholdings in the Company as at 31.12.2025 None
and other interest related to large
shareholders, competitors, customers or
suppliers
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Board member

Name: Jakob Valgeir Flosason

First elected: February 2019

Education and experience: Jakob has an extensive knowledge of the Icelandic fishing industry
from all perspectives, a knowledge that not many people possess.
He has been involved in every aspect of the sector from early age,
working in factories, on fishing boats and building up the family
company to become one of the most technology advanced and
leading company within the Icelandic fishing sector.

Member of board or manangement Jakob is currently a board member of Sigurbjorg ehf., HRock ehf.,

BB29 ehf., Klofningur ehf., Valgeir ehf., B1917 ehf., Syr ehf., Itsorf
ehf.,, Salting ehf., Breidhella ehf., Karlsbali ehf., Gafl ehf,
Hamarshofdi 4 ehf., B15 ehf., Fiskmarkadur Vestfjarda hf. and EA 30
ehf. in addition to his board membership with the Company.

Shareholdings in the Company as at 31.12.2025 Jakob Valgeir ehf., owned by Jakob, his wife, and his father, holds
and other interest related to large 344,961,200 shares. Jakob Valgeir ehf. is also a large supplier of
shareholders, competitors, customers or seafood tothe Company.

suppliers

Alternate Board member

Name: Gunnlaugur Karl Hreinsson
First elected: March 2020
Education and experience: Gunnlaugur Karl Hreinsson is the CEO and owner of GPG seafood.

Gunnlaugur has decades of experience within the seafood sector.

Member of board or manangement Gunnlaugur is the chairman of board in GPG Seafood ehf, bérsnes
ehf, S6lrun ehf, Austmar ehf og Utgerdarfélag Nordurpings ehf. He is
a board member in Safir byggingar ehf og Safell ehf in addition to
his alternate board membership with the Company.

Shareholdings in the Company as at 31.12.2025 GPG Seafood ehf, owned by Gunnlaugur, holds 25,825,754 shares.
and other interest related to large GPG Seafood ehfis also a supplier of seafood to the Company.
shareholders, competitors, customers or

suppliers
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Subcommitees
The Board of Directors has appointed two subcommittees, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee ensures the quality of the financial statements and internal controls. It has oversight of the
external auditors. It also presents proposals for the selection of external auditors and ensures their independence. The
Audit Committee's main responsibilities include monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Group,
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls and risk management systems and overseeing the
selection, appointment and relationship with the Group's external auditor.

The committee shall operate independently on behalf of the Board of Directors who shall elect the members of the
Audit Committee each year. The Audit Committee operates in accordance with rules of procedure approved by the
Board of Directors and shall be made up of 2-3 members. Committee members shall possess knowledge and
experience which is consistent with the work of the committee, at least one of the audit committee members shall be
a financial expert who has accounting or related financial expertise. The members shall be independent of the auditor
of the Group and the majority should be independent of the Company's management. Members of the Audit
Committee are Ingunn Agnes Kro, Bergbdr Baldvinsson and Agust Kristinsson.

The committee shall meet at least four times a year, at appropriate times in the reporting and audit cycle and
otherwise as required. Only members of the Audit Committee have the right to attend committee meetings, however,
other individuals such as the chairman of the Board, chief executive, finance director, other directors and
representatives from the finance function may be invited to attend all or part of any meeting as and when
appropriate. Additionally, the external auditors are invited to attend meetings of the committee on a regular basis.

The Board is responsible for the appointment and activities of the Audit Committee and it operates under the Board's
authority. The Audit Committee does not reduce the responsibilities of the Board or relieve it of any responsibility.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for establishing a remuneration policy for the Company. The
Remuneration Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that compensation arrangements support the strategic
aims of the Company and enable the recruitment, motivation and retention of senior executives while also complying
with legal and regulatory requirements. The committee's main tasks include preparing and submitting annually a
proposal to the Board of Directors for the Company's remuneration policy, annually reviewing the Company's
compensation programs and monitoring that salary and any incentive schemes are in accordance with law and market
practice.

The Board of Directors appoints the members of the committee and its chairman. Neither the Company's chief
executive officer nor any of the Company's and its subsidiaries' top executives shall be appointed to the Remuneration
Committee. The committee operates in accordance with rules of procedure approved by the Board of Directors and
shall be made up of 2-3 members. It is preferable that the members of the committee have experience and knowledge
on guidelines and common practise regarding decision on executives' terms of employment. If deemed necessary, the
Remuneration Committee may seek the assistance of consultants, such consultants shall be independent of the
Company, its executives and the Board of Directors who are not deemed to be independent. The committee is
responsible for examining the consultant's experience. Members of the Remuneration Committee are Birna
Einarsdottir, Jakob V Flosason and Halldér Leifsson. The committee shall call meetings as often as necessary at their
own initiative or at the request of the other committee members, however, not less than twice a year.

The Board is responsible for the appointment and activities of the Remuneration Committee and it operates under the

Board's authority. The Remuneration Committee does not reduce the responsibilities of the Board or relieve it of any
responsibility.
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Executive Management

The Executive Management comprises the Company’s CEO and CFO. The CEO has charge of the day-to-day operations
of the Company and represents the Company in all matters concerning normal operations. The CEO shall manage the
accounts of the Company and employ the employees of the Company. The CEO shall grant Board members and
auditors all necessary information on the operations of the Company which they might request and should be granted
according to statutory law. The CEO of the company is £gir Pall Fridbertsson and the CFO is Alda Bjérk Oskarsdéttir.

Chief Executive Officer

Name: /Agir Pall Fridbertsson
First employed: November 2023
Education and experience: /Agir Pall has over 30 years of management experience, in the

finance sector, seafood sector, as well as consulting for various
companies. Before joining the Group he was the COO of Brim hf.
from 2018 to 2023. He was the Managing Director of Utgerdafélag
Reykjavikur from 2015 - 2017. From 2010 until 2014 he was in
consulting. He was the Managing Director of {sfélag hf. from 2001-
2009.

/Zgir Pall holds a MSc in Finance from the University of Iceland, and
Cand.Oecon. degree from the University of Iceland.

Member of board or manangement Agir Pall is currently the chairman of the board of Joklar-Verdbréf
hf. and a board member of Vidskiptardd (e. Iceland Chamber and
Commerce) and islandsstofa (e.Promote Iceland). Zgir Péll is also a
board member of several of the Issuer's subsidiaries.

Shareholdings in the Company as at 31.12.2025 Valagil ehf, a company owned by Zgir Pall Fridbertsson holds
and other interest related to large 1.000.000 shares.

shareholders, competitors, customers or

suppliers

Chief Financial Officer

Name: Alda Bjork Jonsdottir
First employed: February 2024
Education and experience: Alda is a certified accountant with wide experience in financial

management, accounting, and auditing. Alda joins ISI from Treble
Technologies; previously, she served as a financial controller at
Sidekick Health and as an auditor at Grant Thornton and PWC.

Alda holds MSc in international business and master's degree in
accounting and auditing from Reykjavik University, along with a BA
in psychology from the University of Iceland.

Member of board or manangement Alda is a board member of several of the Issuer's subsidiaries.

Shareholdings in the Company as at 31.12.2025 Alda Bjork Oskarsdéttir holds 324,675 shares.
and other interest related to large

shareholders, competitors, customers or

suppliers
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Internal control and risk management

The Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for internal control and risk management of the Company.
Internal control and risk management procedures are designed to minimize risk of material misstatements. The
Company does not have an internal audit function, but the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the Group's
internal controls and risk management systems.

An independent auditor or auditing company is elected at the Annual General Meeting for a term of one year. The
auditors shall be provided with any information requested in relation to its auditing services for the Company, they
shall always have full access to the Company’s books and documents. They shall audit the Company’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with international standards on auditing, including a review of internal controls
and processes. Any significant findings in relation to the audit and review of internal controls are reported to the
Board of Directors through Audit Committee.

Effective risk management is important to minimise the risk of material misstatement and for the business to perform.
Iceland Seafood activities are exposed to variety of risk factors related to its operations and financials, such as
Currency Risk, Supplier Risk, Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk etc. Risk management within Iceland Seafood is governed by the
Board of Directors, while the Audit Committee is responsible for its review on a regular basis. The Executive
Management is responsible for identifying material risk and developing the risk management strategy.

Iceland Seafood’s corporate governance rules
The Company has specifically reserved a section of its website for corporate governance information on
www.icelandseafood.com/investors. The below information and documents are available on the website:

1. The Company’s corporate governance statement.

The Company’s remuneration policy.

3. Summarised information on the Company’s Board of Directors, CEO, auditors and members of sub-
committees.
4, Information on the Company’s shareholders’” meetings, including time and location, information on

candidates to the Board, and the agenda of the meeting, together with the date of issue of the annual
accounts and interim financial statements.

5. Meeting notices, minutes of shareholders’ meetings and documents presented at the meeting. It is not
necessary to publish a list of the shareholders and proxies that have attended meetings.

The Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board’s rules of procedure.

The sub-committee’s rules of procedure.
The Company’s annual accounts and the report of the Board of Directors.

L N

Reykjavik, 26 February 2026.

Board of Directors
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Non-Financial Information (unaudited)
for the year ended 31 December 2025

About the Company

Iceland Seafood International hf ("The Company") is a holding Company for a Group of subsidiaries in Europe and
South America. The Company is a one of the leading suppliers of North-Atlantic seafood, a global value-added seafood
producer, and sales and marketing Company. The Company serves all major seafood markets worldwide, with a depth
of expertise and understanding to meet customers' needs, combined with innovative, flexible solutions and strategic
global distribution.

The Group is headquartered in Iceland and has subsidiaries in Spain, Argentina, France, Germany, Iceland, Ireland and
the United Kingdom. The operation is categorised into three division.

VA S-Europe:

elceland Seafood Ibérica offers variety of frozen and salted products from all major fishing grounds in the world and
runs factories in Barcelona and Argentina as well as operating two freezer trawlers, serving markets in Spain, Italy,
Portugal and Greece.

e Ahumados Dominguez produces premium-quality smoked salmon and has a strong brand and consumer recognition
in the Spanish retail market. It actively runs consumer campaigns and has a direct consumer facing through its
speciality stores.

VA N-Europe:

e Oceanpath Limited is the Irish subsidiary. It consists of three companies, Oceanpath, specialising in supplying fresh
fish to the retail sector in Ireland, Dunns of Dublin, best known for its smoked seafood products, and Carr & Sons,
producing smoked salmon and a range of other premium quality seafood products. Oceanpath is the leading supplier
to the retail sector in Ireland in fresh and smoked products.

Sales & Distribution:

¢ |celand Seafood Iceland is one of the largest companies in seafood export from Iceland to all main markets
worldwide, providing sourcing expertise, quality control and logistic solutions.

¢ |celand Seafood Germany supplies high quality fresh seafood. Fresh fish is mainly flown in from Iceland for
delicatessen stores, food service and retail.

* Iceland Seafood France provides high quality seafood from Iceland and various global sources. The Company supplies
fresh and frozen products to food service, retail, and processors in France.

Sustainability

The Company’s mission is to supply sustainably sourced seafood while continuously improving the environmental and
social aspects linked to its operations and aligning them with business priorities. The Company’s ambition is to
continuously improve the environmental and social impacts, both from own operations, as well as supply-chain
partners' operations.

The financial year 2024 was originally intended to be the last year the Company would report on its ESG aspects
according to the Nasdaq ESG Reporting Guide, as preparations had begun for compliance with the EU Corporate
Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD). However, recent EU Omnibus developments and related “Stop-the-Clock”
and “quick-fix” measures have postponed CSRD implementation timelines and significantly reduced the number of
companies required to report. These changes include delayed reporting obligations and higher thresholds that may
exempt many companies from compulsory CSRD reporting. Given these regulatory delays and uncertainties, the
Company will continue reporting according to the Nasdaq ESG Reporting Guide until further clarity is available. As part
of ongoing sustainability work, the Company has implemented a Sustainability Policy guiding Environmental, Social
and Governance (ESG) priorities, with defined objectives and related impacts. ESG responsibilities have now been
transferred under the CFO, who is responsible for presenting the policy, overseeing its implementation, and
monitoring its effectiveness. Each subsidiary reports quantitative values monthly, and the Company’s objectives and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) will continue to evolve in line with internal initiatives, emerging legislation, and
stakeholder expectations.
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Objectives and impacts of Key Performance Indicators (KPI's)

On the road to improving its impact the Company set out certain objectives to achieve. The impacts of those
objectives were then further identified and the KPI's were set. The following sections will explain in more detail why
the objectives were chosen and how the KPI’s will be reached. Final results and milestones achieved to fulfil targets
will be presented in the Annual Report, published in conjunction with the Annual Meeting on March 24th.

Supporting policies for sustainability objectives and KPI's
* Sustainability Policy

* Group Code of Conduct

* Supplier Code of Conduct

a) Environmental aspects

The aim is to build further on improvements already made as well as finding new methods to further strengthen the
environmental profile and reduce overall greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. The Company depends on the continued
biodiversity and stability of the ocean ecosystem and therefore places reduction of GHG emissions and sustainable
sourcing of seafood high on the agenda.

Objectives Impacts 2026 Targets
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b from waste and set quantitative
reduction targets

*  Reduce amount of waste generated

Minimise waste > ‘
*  Increase recycling rate of waste

Certified sustainable seafood

The Company promotes and practices responsible sourcing of seafood and monitors the level of MSC or ASC certified
products within the value chain. All subsidiaries have a valid chain of custody certification towards the MSC standard,
ensuring traceability of the products. Subsidiaries also have a certification towards ASC chain of custody where
applicable.

The Company is committed to work with the industry on fishery improvements and best practices. There is a deep
understanding of the risks related to each type of supplier and market within the trading part of the Company. The
risks are continuously assessed and monitored during the relationships with suppliers. All production sites are also
subject to inspections for compliance with applicable food laws, including traceability requirements, by local
authorities.

Iceland Seafood International hf. 54 Financial Statements 2025



Non-Financial Information (unaudited)
for the year ended 31 December 2025

Scope 1 & 2 emissions

It is important to lower the carbon footprint by eliminating emissions as much as possible. Innovation and investment
are the driving factors enabling the completion to reach this goal.

For scope 1 this can be done by switching to more environmentally friendly cooling systems and phasing out fossil-fuel
use on site by upgrading to electricity generated equipment.

For scope 2 this can be done by opting out of purchasing electricity not generated from renewable energy sources and
reduce the dependency on the electricity grid by increasing electricity production on site.

Recycled waste

Circular economy aims to minimize waste and promote a sustainable use of natural resources. In a circular economy,
products are either recycled, remanufactured, or re-used after they have served their initial purpose. As strategies
have been prioritised on how to reduce the amount of waste generated, the circular economy has been kept in mind.

Continued improvements in the processing of seafood.

Purchase wisely other goods.

Awareness training for staff on different streams and what can be recycled.

Seek every opportunity to find recycling streams for the waste that is generated on-site.
Increased co-operation with our service partners in waste-handling.

vk wnN e

Most of the non-recycled waste from the operations is organic waste from shrimp processing in Achernar, located in
Argentina. Therefore, special emphasis has been placed on finding ways to reuse the organic waste and upcycle it.

Water

The Company invested 2023 in a wastewater treatment plant in Puerto Madryn, Argentina, supporting the goal of
reclaiming 50% of the water used. Reclaimed wastewater, treated at this wastewater treatment facility, can be reused
in applications such as irrigation and industrial processes.

When upgrading equipment, water efficiency is an important selection criterion. Possible water savings will be
analysed to reduce the water footprint.

Renewable energy

To increase the share of renewable energy, investments were made 2023 in solar panels for the sites in Madrid and
Barcelona. The sun already emits more than enough energy to power all energy needs on the planet and as an added
benefit the sun is free, clean, and a sustainable energy source. It can be used to provide heat, and electricity. Given the
abundance of solar energy, its reliability, positive effects on air quality, and its cost-effectiveness, investing in solar
panels for the Spanish subsidiaries was an easy choice.

Ahumados Dominguez in Madrid and Iceland Seafood Ibérica in Barcelona completed the installation of solar panels in
2023. The solar panels are mounted on the roofs of our buildings, utilizing otherwise unused areas, increasing even
more the benefits of them. In Madrid the generation capacity is around 550 kWh and in Barcelona about 440 kWh, in
total around 25-30% of the electricity need of the Spanish subsidiaries.
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b) Social aspects of own operations

Human resources are the heart of the operation. The Company is convinced that good management, transparency in
communication, safe work conditions, health of employees and appropriate training, increases job satisfaction and
employee engagement, as well as increasing their overall health and well-being.

Objectives Impacts 2026 Targets
e E (" Reachmore employees through internal h (" Reach 80% of employees through )
Engaging and healthy work employee satisfaction surveys satisfaction survey
environment |+ Increased employee satisfaction "| + Steadily increase score of
\ J \*__Increased equality Y, \__safisfaction survey Y,
2 ! e e
| * Increase awareness and knowledge " h .
Health and Safety at work 1 [ —— b Establish Group policies and targets
L% J U8 J N J

Employee satisfaction survey

The Company’s operations are made up of a highly experienced Group of employees, from various countries,
backgrounds, and cultures. Focus is set on the importance of attracting employees with the right skills and ambition to
provide high quality service, exceed customer demands and achieve financial and strategic goals. The objective is to
ensure that the employees feel empowered to deliver to the highest standards by being connected to producers and
customers.

The Company has implemented a robust system of regularly scheduled measurements to monitor employee
engagement. The system is intended to reduce employee turnover, boost employee engagement, improve managerial
skills, increase workforce visibility and human resource metrics, and provide up to date human resource information.

Health and safety

Health and safety of staff is essentially important for the Company. Management in each subsidiary oversees
compliance with all local laws and regulations. Production sites have in place appropriate occupational health and
safety (OHS) and emergency preparedness and response management systems. Employee safety is ensured with
training on tasks and appropriate personal protective equipment (PPE). Metrics on operational health and safety will
be reported in the Company's ESG report.
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c) Social aspects of the value chain

As a global value-added seafood producer and sales and marketing Company with a vast global supply chain, the
Company must source, produce, package, transport, and sell products sustainably and responsibly. The objective is to
foster sustainable and responsible corporate behaviour within the supply chain, increase transparency and to know
the collective impact of the entire supply chain. This involves continued co-operation with suppliers and service
providers.

The Company recognises and supports international human right treaties. No human right violations have been
reported in 2025.

Objectives Impacts 2026 Targets
~ 'd N r
Engaging suppliers _| * Increased share of suppliers assessed on their _| * 50% of largest supplier's
sustainability aspects sustainability aspects mapped
S
™ ¥ ~ p
i i *  Continued support with local communities and . w5
Supporting communities 5 SoriaRntEs withih e stipliehai » + Support local communities

A . > \.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) mapping of suppliers

The Company has started to assess its suppliers on their overall sustainability matters. The supply chain mostly
consists of sourced seafood, packaging material and transportation. It has both environmental and social impacts.
Environmental impacts include all the impacts the products and their respective processes have on the environment.
Social impacts include labour practices and human rights, business ethics involved in the production and product
delivery. Often these subjects are intertwined.

The Company has implemented a platform that enables continuous monitoring on its supplier CSR management and
progress while offering tools to drive improvement on the supplier side. Within this platform risks are identified in the
supply chain, corporate adherence to recognized CSR criteria is validated and the scope of the assessment is adjusted
to supplier Company size, industry, and location.

Supporting communities

Iceland Seafood International and its subsidiaries have through the years donated resources and money to charitable
organisations in their communities. The amounts and number of donations are evaluated and decided by each
subsidiary. The focus has been on engaging children in various activities and donating to causes where most aid is
needed.
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d) Governance

Continuous improvement regarding the Company’s ESG aspects is high on the agenda. Integrating sustainability into
the business culture and supply chain is a key factor in operating a successful and sustainable global business. The
Company will continue to increase the knowledge of employees regarding ethics and human rights as well as continue
to increase the knowledge of its suppliers and service providers sustainability aspects.

Objectives Impacts 2026 Targets
( A "+ Increased employee training and knowledge on ) ( R
) " Group Code of Conduct |+ 50% of largest supplier's
Integrating governance . . g
* Increased rate of suppliers committed to sustainability aspects mapped
\ J \____ Supplier Code of Conduct ) \ )
( N : ; ; i
+  Continuous improvement of ESG reporting * Double Materiality Assessment
Transparency » +  CSRD requirements fulfilled » + ESG report audited
P L Increase reported Scope 3 KPI's S Report GHG of waste and packaging )

Employee training on Group Code of Conduct

Sets the standard for how employees engage with co-workers, suppliers, customers, and other stakeholders. The code
applies to all employees, managers and board members and gives guidance towards conducting business practices
honestly, fairly, and legally. The Company has zero tolerance towards bribery and corruption and expects employees,
suppliers, contractors, and other business partners to act with integrity and without acts of bribery or corruption.

Commitment to Supplier Code of Conduct

The Company recognises that a Supplier Code of Conduct is an important way to communicate publicly to customers,
consumers of our products, and other stakeholders the practices that are expected for suppliers to follow. The
Supplier Code of Conduct sets expectations for suppliers, gives guidance, and promotes ethical behaviour by
addressing human rights, fair labour practices, legal compliance, and environmental responsibility.

All suppliers shall read, approve, and conduct their operation according to the code.

Transparency - due diligence

ESG numbers are collected and reviewed respectively in each subsidiary before they are sent to the ISI hf finance
department, where results of the KPIs are combined for the final report, outcomes calculated, and impacts assessed.
The Company is continuously improving on internal documentation and processes and intends to get external
verification along with CSRD implementation.

Double Materiality Assessment

A detailed double materiality assessment was completed in 2024. However, the presentation of the results will be
delayed due to the ongoing uncertainty in the ESG regulatory landscape. The Company will publish the assessment
once the regulatory framework becomes clearer.

Scope 3

Most of the Company’s identified GHG emissions come from upstream and downstream transportation. The
calculation method is based on Greenhouse Gas Protocol: Corporate Value Chain (Scope 3) Accounting and Reporting
Standard. The Company puts effort into receiving calculated emission factors from its transportation service providers,
when that is not available, the standard emission factors provided in the above mentioned GHG standard are used.
Scope 3 reporting is expected to extend when result of the double materiality assessment are ready.
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Risk management
As previously mentioned, double materiality assessment has been carried out where risks have been systematically
identified and the extent of them evaluated. The major risks that have been identified are related to climate change:

Ocean acidification: Majority of the global carbon cycle is circulated through the ocean which absorbs the greater part
of excess heat from GHG emissions causing acidification. The ocean is the home to a vast variety of marine species and
acidification disrupts the balance of life found in the ocean which can affect seafood supplies.

Extreme weather events: Climate change increases the frequency of extreme weather events. This can affect the
availability of seafood due to dangerous sea conditions as well as delaying transportation of seafood from producer to
the end consumer.

EU Taxonomy Reporting

The EU Taxonomy Regulation was entered into force in Iceland on June 1st, 2023, through Act no. 25/2023 on
Sustainability Disclosures in Financial Services and the Taxonomy for Sustainable Investments. The regulation is
retroactive to Jan 1st, 2023, the reporting scope is therefore the full financial year of 2023 and valid for 2024 and 2025
as well.

The purpose of the regulation is to define which business activities are considered environmentally sustainable based
on the technical screening criteria set out in the delegated regulation 2021/2139 and is set to promote transparency in
sustainability information. For companies to be considered environmentally sustainable within the meaning of the
regulation, they must meet the criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activity according to Article 3 of the
regulation. Firstly, the economic activity must significantly contribute to one or more of the environmental goals,
while at the same time it must do no significant harm to other goals. It must be carried out in accordance with the
minimum safeguards and finally comply with the technical screening criteria.

The environmental objectives are six, climate mitigation, climate change adaptation, sustainable use and protection of
water and marine resources, transition to a circular economy, pollution prevention and control, and protection and
restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems. The technical screening criteria for climate mitigation and climate change
adaptation have been implemented by delegated regulation EU 2021/2139 and business activities that are listed there
are subject to information obligations in Iceland but delegated regulation EU 2023/2486 on other environmental
objectives and delegated regulation EU 2023/2485 on updated climate objectives entered into force within the EU in
2023 and are awaiting implementation in Iceland.

Companies are required to disclose the percentage of revenue, capital expenses and operational expenses for eligible
activities, that is, activities identified under the EU Taxonomy. Similarly, the same criteria must be reported for
activities that meet all the criteria of the regulation and have been identified as aligned activities or environmentally
sustainable.
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Evaluation of eligibility

The Company began reviewing its operations in accordance with the technical screening criteria, where the activities
were compared to the technical screening criteria of the environmental objectives that have already been
implemented, climate mitigation, and climate change adaptation. The Company's core activity, sale of seafood, does
not currently fall under the technical screening criteria. However, a decision was made to identify revenue, CapEx and
OpEx for the following activities:

* 4.1 - "Construction or operation of electricity generation facilities that produce electricity using solar photovoltaic
(PV) technology”.

* 7.2 - "Renovation of existing building”.

* 7.6 - "Installation, maintenance and repair of renewable energy technologies”.

* 7.7 - "Acquisition and ownership of buildings”.

The aim of going through the eligbility assessment was to identify environmental sustainability within the operation
and prepare the Company for further reporting in coming years. Further development of the EU Taxonomy will be
monitored to prepare for when additional activites will be subject to disclosure.

Evaluation of alignment

For an activity to be considered aligned and thereby meet requirements of the EU Taxonomy of being environmentally
sustainable, it needs to meet the requirements of substantial contribution to at least one environmental objective
while doing no significant harm to any of the other objectives, in addition to complying with minimum safeguards.

Buildings

For the renovation of buildings (7.2) to be considered a significant contribution to mitigating climate change, the first
requirement is that they meet current requirements for major renovation or that they lead to a reduction in primary
energy demand by 30%. For the purchase and ownership of buildings (7.7) to be considered a significant contribution,
the buildings in question must be in energy efficiency class A. Energy efficiency is defined by an energy efficiency
certificate, which is defined by EU Directive 2010/30, and primary energy needs are based on the same certificate.

The renovation of an existing building owned by the subsidiary in Barcelona does not meet the requirement of 30%
reduction in primary energy demand. The Company owns various buildings in its locations, however none of them hold
an energy efficiency certificate, stating the energy efficiency of the building to be class A. The Company is therefore
not able to demonstrate that these activities have a significant contribution to mitigating climate change and did not
continue with the assessment.

Renewable energy

The Company generates electricity using photovoltaic cells at its locations in Madrid and Barcelona (4.1/7.6). For the
activity to be considered contributing significantly to mitigating climate change, it is sufficient that electricity is
produced using photovoltaic cell technology. To meet the requirement of not causing significant harm, a climate risk
and vulnerability assessment of the specified activity is required. The Company has carried out the mentioned
assessment on the activity classified as eligible activity and has assessed the main climate-related risks associated with
it. Similarly, the Company has identified which adaptation solutions are available and where improvements are
needed. There are no other requirements for the activity, and it is therefore considered environmentally sustainable
and classified as Taxonomy-aligned.
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Minimum safeguards

Article 18 of the EU Taxonomy regulation describes Minimum Safeguards considering the guidelines of the
Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD), the guiding principles of the United Nations on
business and human rights as well as eight fundamental conventions in the declaration of the International Labor
Organization. Platform on Sustainable Finance has defined the core topics based on these requirements to be human
rights, including labour rights, bribery, taxation, and fair competition.

The Company complies with these requirements and has both implemented Group Code of Conduct and Supplier Code
of Conduct. The Company also performs due diligence on its upstream value chain by mapping and scoring its suppliers
and service providers sustainability aspects in cooperation with EcoVadis, a recognised assessment platform that rates
business sustainability in environmental impact, labour, and human rights standards, ethics, and procurement
practices.

The Company is aware that continuous improvements and reassurances are needed when it comes to minimum
safeguards, such as a detailed due diligence on human rights according to the OECD definition, as well as upcoming
requirements in European legislation regarding the provision of information in the field of human rights and will
continue to emphasize this work in the coming months.

Key Performance Indicators

The European Union has published guidance on calculations of key performance indicators (KPI’s) in a delegated
regulation 2021/2178. The proportion of turnover, CapEx and OpEx, is calculated in accordance with Article 8 of the EU
Taxonomy regulation. However, there’s a possibility that criteria or methods for calculations will change in accordance
with any future updates of the regulation, that could influence future Taxonomy calculations of the Company.
Following are explanations of KPI’s of identified eligible activities within the Company.

Revenue

Turnover as defined in the EU Taxonomy regulation is equal to the consolidated revenues as reported in the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statement for the year 2025, explained in note 2. The portion of the revenue that is
eligible or aligned with the EU Taxonomy is 0%. See table on page 62.

CapEx

According to Article 8 of the EU Taxonomy regulation, CapEx consist of the increase in tangible and intangible assets,
before any depreciation, amortisation, revaluation, or write offs, excluding fair value movements. CapEx in the
financial year 2025 amounted to EUR 10.0 million as detailed in notes 10-11 to the Consolidated Financial Statement.
Thereof, 0% are related to eligible activities and 0% related to aligned activities. See table on page 63.

OpEx

The EU Taxonomy regulation defines OpEx differently from the OpEx of the Consolidated Financial Statement. The EU
Taxonomy excludes depreciation, amortization, general and administrative, and sales and marketing related expenses.
Included are direct non-capitalised costs derived from the day-to-day servicing of assets, consisting of research and
development, short-term leases, and maintenance and repairment and similar essential cost for maintaining efficient
operation of the relevant assets. OpEx in the year 2025 was EUR 2.1 million and were related to maintenance material,
cost of employee repairing a machine, cost of employee cleaning a factory and IT dedicated to maintenance. Thereof
0% are related to eligible activities and 0% are aligned. See table on page 64.

Nuclear and natural gas activities

In addition, Iceland Seafood discloses information on nuclear and natural gas activities in accordance with Article 8
(points 6 and 7) of the same Regulation. Since Iceland Seafood has neither nuclear or natural gas activities, KPI‘s are
not included in accordance with same Annex. See table on page 65.
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Key Perfomance Indicators: Revenue
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A-2T y-Eligible but not envi Il inable activities (not T: ligned activities)
Acquisition and ownership of buildings 7.7 0,00 0%
Electricity generation using solar photovoltaic
technology 4.1 0,00 0%
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Turnover of Taxonomy-non-eligible activities | 484.273| 100%
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Key Perfomance Indicators: CapEx
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Key Perfomance Indicators: OpEx
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OpEx of Taxonomy-non-eligible activitit | 2,100| 100%
Total (A+B) | 2,100 100%
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Nuclear and fossil gas related activities

Nuclear energy related activities
1 The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to research, [NO
development, demonstration and deployment of innovative
electricity generation facilities that produce energy from nuclear
processes with minimal waste from the fuel cycle.

2 The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to NO
construction and safe operation of new nuclear installations to
produce electricity or process heat, including for the purposes of
districtheating or industrial processes such as hydrogen
production, as well as their safety upgrades, using best
available technologies.

3 The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to safe NO
operation of existing nuclear installations that produce
electricity or process heat, including for the purposes of district
heating or industrial processes such as hydrogen production
from nuclear energy, as well as their safety upgrades.

Fossil gas related activities

4 The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to NO
construction or operation of electricity generation facilities that
produce electricity using fossil gaseous fuels.

5 The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to NO
construction, refurbishment, and operation of combined
heat/cool and power generation facilities using fossil gaseous
fuels.

6 The undertaking carries out, funds or has exposures to NO
construction, refurbishmentand operation of heat generation
facilities that produce heat/cool using fossil gaseous fuels.
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